CITY OF RIO DELL CITY COUNCIL
M REGULAR MEETING - 6:30 P.M.
RIO TUESDAY, APRIL 19, 2022
DeLL CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS
— 675 WILDWOOD AVENUE, RIO DELL

CALIFCANIA

WELCOME - Copies of this agenda, staff reports and other material available to the City Council are
available at the City Clerk’s office in City Hall, 675 Wildwood Avenue and available on the City’s website
at cityofriodell.ca.gov. Your City Government welcomes your interest and hopes you will attend and
participate in Rio Dell City Council meetings often.

SPECIAL PUBLIC HEALTH EMERGENCY ALTERATIONS TO MEETING FORMAT
CORONAVIRUS (COVID-19)

Effective immediately, the City of Rio Dell will reopen City Council meetings held in City Hall Council
Chambers to in-person attendance by the public. The public may also attend these meeting virtually
through Zoom. The meetings will also be viewable via livestreaming through our partners at Access
Humboldt via their YouTube channel or Suddenlink channels on Cable TV.

To maintain safety and minimize the health risks associated with COVID-19, participants may be
required to complete an Attestation of Vaccination upon entering the City Council Chambers.
Fully vaccinated participants will not be required to wear a mask. Unvaccinated participants
must wear face coverings at all times while in the City Hall Council Chambers.

Public Comment by Email:
In balancing the health risks associated with COVID-19 and need to conduct government in an

open and transparent manner, public comment on agenda items can be submitted via email
at publiccomment@cityofriodell.ca.gov. Please note the agenda item the comment is directed to
(example: Public Comments for items not on the agenda) and email no later than one-hour prior
to the start of the Council meeting. Your comments will be read out loud, for up to three minutes.

Meeting can be viewed on Access Humboldt's website at https://www.accesshumboldt.net/.
Suddenlink Channels 10, 11 & 12 or Access Humboldt’s YouTube Channel at
https://www.youtube.com/user/accesshumboldt.

Zoom Public Comment:

When the Mayor announces the agenda item that you wish to comment on, call the conference
line and turn off your TV or live stream. Please call the toll-free number 1-888-475-4499, enter
meeting ID 987 154 0944 and press star (*) 9 on your phone - this will raise your hand. You
will continue to hear the meeting on the call. When it is time for public comment on the item
you wish to speak on, the Clerk will unmute your phone. You will hear a prompt that will
indicate your phone is unmuted. Please state your name and begin your comment. You will
have 3 minutes to comment.




A. CALL TO ORDER

B. ROLL CALL

(e PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
D. CEREMONIAL MATTERS

E. PUBLIC PRESENTATIONS

This time is for persons who wish to address the Council on any matter not on this agenda and over
which the Council has jurisdiction. As such, a dialogue with the Council or staff is not allowed under
the Ralph M. Brown Act. Items requiring Council action not listed on this agenda may be placed on
the next regular agenda for consideration if the Council directs, unless a finding is made by at least
2/3 of the Council that the item came up after the agenda was posted and is of an urgency nature
requiring immediate action. Please limit comments to a maximum of 3 minutes.

F. CONSENT CALENDAR

The Consent Calendar adopting the printed recommended Council action will be enacted with one
vote. The Mayor will first ask the staff, the public, and the Councilmembers if there is anyone who
wishes to address any matter on the Consent Calendar. The matters removed from the Consent
Calendar will be considered individually following action on the remaining consent calendar items.

1) 2022/0419.01 - Approve Minutes of the April 5, 2022 Regular Meeting
(ACTION) 1

2) 2022/0419.02 - Approve Resolution No. 1534-2022 Authorizing the City
Manager to Execute Agreements with the California
Department of Transportation for the City of Rio Dell
Clean California Local Grant Programs: 1) Rio Dell
Gateway Beautification and 2) Eel River Trail (ACTION) 5
3) 2022/0419.03 - Receive and File Check Register for March (ACTION) 9
G. ITEMS REMOVED FROM THE CONSENT CALENDAR
H. REPORTS/STAFF COMMUNICATIONS

1) 2022/0419.04 - City Manager/Staff Update (RECEIVE & FILE) 13



. SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS/STUDY SESSIONS/PUBLIC HEARINGS

1) 2022/0419.05 - Presentation by JJA CPA, Inc. - Fiscal Year 2020-2021
Audited Financial Statements (RECEIVE & FILE) 19

2) 2022/0419.06 - Public Hearing and Presentation on Proposed Water and

Wastewater Rate Study with Proposed Rates through
Fiscal Year 2026-2027 Pursuant to Proposition 218
with Possible Continuance of Tabulation of Protest Ballots
to May 3, 2022 (DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION) 118

J.  SPECIAL CALL ITEMS/COMMUNITY AFFAIRS

K. ORDINANCES/SPECIAL RESOLUTIONS/PUBLIC HEARINGS

L. COUNCIL REPORTS/COMMUNICATIONS

M. ADJOURNMENT

The next regular City Council meeting is scheduled for
Tuesday, May 3, 2022 at 6:30 p.m.



RIO DELL CITY COUNCIL
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES
APRIL 5, 2022

The regular meeting of the Rio Dell City Council was called to order at 6:33 p.m. by
Mayor Garnes.

ROLL CALL: Present: Mayor Garnes, Mayor Pro Tem Johnson,
Councilmembers Carter, and Wilson

Absent: Councilmember Woodall (excused)

Others Present: City Manager Knopp, Wastewater Superintendent
Taylor, Fiscal Assistant Il Hamaker and City Clerk
Dunham

Absent: Finance Director Dillingham, Community Development
Director Caldwell, Chief of Police Conner, Water/
Roadways Superintendent Jensen and Management
Analyst Sanborn

ANNOUNCEMENT OF ITEMS TO BE DISCUSSED IN CLOSED SESSION
Conference with Legal Counsel — Anticipated Litigation — Consider Initiation of Litigation —

Three (3) Potential Cases (Pursuant to Paragraph (4) Gov't Code §54956.9)
Mayor Garnes announced that the closed session scheduled for 5:30 p.m. was cancelled.

ORAL ANNOUNCEMENTS

Mayor Garnes moved Agenda ltem (P) (1) (Resolution No. 1533-2022 Reducing the
Cannabis Cultivation Tax) to the front of the agenda.

City Manager Knopp said that staff recommended removal of this item from the agenda
and that it be continued to the regularly scheduled meeting of May 3, 2022 to allow
Community Development Director Caldwell to be present. He noted that there is no real
urgency since the next tax cycle starts on July 1, 2022. He explained that the item was
moved to the front of the agenda to allow for public comment.

PUBLIC PRESENTATIONS
Mayor Garnes called for public comment on non-agenda items.

Shawn Studebaker, Humboldt 454, LLC addressed the Council and said that he has a
10,000 sq. ft. indoor grow at the Humboldt-Rio Dell Business Park and it was not included
in the proposed cannabis tax discount. He pointed out that the current tax is only $2.00 a
square foot and if discounts are given, they would like to be included, however; if it doesn't
pass, they are fine with the current tax.
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Jesse Jeffries commented that all sectors of the cannabis industry are struggling, not just
non-powered cannabis farms, and asked the Council when considering the tax reduction to
take into consideration all the improvement costs associated with Humboldt 454, LLC
incurred as far as water lines, power, building, landscaping, operational costs, and year-
round employees. He said that the Council is considering lowering the tax for non-
powered cannabis cultivation but pointed out that they are not impacted with the same
infrastructure costs as the indoor cannabis cultivators. He recommended the Council
consider leveling the playing field by reducing the tax across the board or not pass it at all.

CONSENT CALENDAR

Mayor Garnes asked if any councilmember, staff or member of the public would like to
remove any item from the consent calendar for separate discussion. No items were
removed.

Motion was made by Johnson/Carter to approve the following consent calendar items:

1) Minutes of the March 15, 2022 Regular Meeting

2) Minutes of the March 29, 2022 Special Meeting

3) Appointment of Nick Angeloff, Larry Arsenault and Patrick Knight to the Rio Dell
Planning Commission for 3-year terms ending December 31, 2024 and
appointment of Arnie Kemp as Alternate Planning Commissioner for the
remainder of the term ending December 31, 2023

4) Resolution No. 1532-2022 Accepting Submission by the Police Chief of a
Proposed Military Equipment Use Policy

) Authorizing Chief of Police to Purchase Five Panasonic Tough Book Computers
for Mobile Display Terminals in Patrol Vehicles in the Amount of $21,847

6) Authorizing Mayor to Sign Letter Supporting State Funding for Local
Government Implementation of SB 1383 Organics Rules

Motion carried 4-0.
REPORTS/STAFF COMMUNICATIONS

City Manager/Staff Update

City Manager Knopp provided highlights of the staff update and said that the bids were
received for the 2022 Street Asphalt Project and the bid was awarded to G. R. Sundberg.
Staff is in the process of reviewing the agreement with the contractor and work was
expected to begin soon.

Staff has been working on the Water CIP grant application and providing additional
information to the Water Board. The City Hall Solar Project was nearing completion and
an application was submitted to PG&E to begin the official operation of the solar and

battery backup project so the energy produced by the facility can be pushed back out to
the grid.
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He also reported that staff has been having ongoing discussions with Fagade Improvement
Project applicants. The most recent submittal seems to be a very good project that
everyone will be happy with. Staff is also continuing to have ongoing discussions with
local area experts on the Rio Dell Community Forest concept.

He added that the City received approximately $41,000 for sewer arrearages so those
credits are currently being applied to sewer accounts similar to the water arrearages
program that was made available by the State as a result of the COVID emergency..

He also noted that on March 22" Mayor Garnes attended a virtual meeting of the CPUC to
give public comment regarding PG&E’s slow rate in updating critical energy conveyance
facilities and its impact to not only Rio Dell, but the entire County of Humboldt with regard
to economic development.

There were no comments or questions from the Council or the public regarding the staff
update.

SPECIAL CALL ITEMS/COMMUNITY AFFAIRS/PUBLIC HEARINGS

Appoint two Members of the City Council to an Ad Hoc Committee to Participate in
Interviews for Rio Dell Chief of Police

City Manager Knopp provided a staff report and said as the Council is aware, staff is in the
process of soliciting applications for Chief of Police with three applications received so far.
Staff recommended the appointment of two members of the City Council to an Ad Hoc
committee to proceed with the initial review of applications and interviews. He noted that
Mayor Pro Tem Johnson and Councilmember Wilson served on the last Ad Hoc when
Chief Conner was hired.

Mayor Garnes commented that Councilmember Woodall reached out to her expressing
interest in serving on the committee. Mayor Garnes also volunteered to serve.

Mayor Garnes and Councilmember Woodall were then appointed to the Ad Hoc
Committee to participate in the interview process for the Chief of Police.

ORDINANCES/SPECIAL RESOLUTIONS

Adopt Resolution No. 1531-2022 Declaring the Need for Continued In-Person/Hybrid
Meetings or Resuming with Virtual (Zoom) Meetings in Accordance with AB 361

City Clerk Dunham explained that during the duration of the declared emergency, staff is
required to bring the resolution back to the Council every 30 days to reconsider the
circumstances of the state of emergency and make the finding that the emergency
continues to directly impact or does not directly impact the ability of the City Council, staff
and public from meeting safely in person. Based on that finding, the meetings would
continue to be held in-person (hybrid), or resume as virtual (Zoom) meetings.
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Motion was made by Wilson/Johnson to adopt Resolution No. 1531-2022 Declaring the
Need for Continued In-Person/Hybrid Meetings in Accordance with AB 361. Motion carried
4-0.

COUNCIL REPORTS/COMMUNICATIONS

Councilmember Wilson reported on the opening of the Hambro CRV Redemption
Center in Arcata and noted that they would be accepting up to 100 pounds of CRV per
day.

Councilmember Carter reported that she attended a RREDC meeting in-person which
was a nice way to reconnect with the Board. They discussed their 5-year Strategic Plan
which included such topics as housing, health care, infrastructure and support for small
farms.

Mayor Garnes reported that she attended a Cal Cities business meeting in Ukiah on
March 25 and that they shared information between the cities in the Redwood: Empire
Division and Fortuna mentioned that there was something in the works for the former
mill site property. She said that they also did a walk around tour of the Ukiah
Streetscape which she was only able to drive around and view.

She also said that she wanted to wish local resident Nancy Kurtz a happy 94t birthday.

ADJOURNMENT

Motion was made by Johnson/Carter to adjourn the meeting at 6:50 p.m. to the April 19,
2022 regular meeting. Motion carried 4-0.

Debra Garnes, Mayor
Attest:

Karen Dunham, City Clerk
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DATE: April 19, 2022
TO: Mayor and Members of the City Council
FROM: Travis Sanborn, Management Analyst

THROUGH: Kyle Knopp, City Manager

SUBJECT:  AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE AGREEMENTS
WITH THE CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION FOR
THE CITY OF RIO DELL CLEAN CALIFORNIA LOCAL GRANT
PROGRAMS: 1) RIO DELL GATEWAY BEAUTIFICATION AND 2) EEL
RIVER TRAIL

IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT THE CITY COUNCIL:

Approve attached Resolution No. 1534-2022 Authorizing the City Manager to Execute
Agreements with the California Department of Transportation for the City of Rio Dell Clean
California Local Grant Programs: 1) Rio Dell Gateway Beautification and 2) Eel River Trail

BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION

The City of Rio Dell was recently awarded grant funds from the Clean California Local Grant
Program to complete two projects; the Rio Dell Gateway Beautification and the Eel River Trail.

This Rio Dell Gateway Beautification project will enhance the northern segment of Wildwood
Avenue, the main street through the City of Rio Dell, from Elko Street to Belleview Avenue.
Existing unhealthy trees in medians and landscaped areas will be removed, an adequately-sized
planting hole will be excavated and filled with amended soil, and trees will be replanted that are
sensitive to the town’s character, drought-tolerant, low-maintenance, and aesthetically pleasing.
The existing irrigation system will be modified to match the placement and water needs of the
new trees. Near the southern end of the project, Memorial Park will be revitalized and enhanced
with the addition of exercise equipment.

The Eel River Trail project will develop a new 1/4 mile, 10° Class I shared-use path along the
west bank of the Eel River, in the City of Rio Dell. The Eel River Trail will enhance an
unofficial footpath that lacks accessibility features & amenities, create a link between two
unconnected city streets.



At the southern gateway, an improved asphalt parking area with a bioretention feature at the
Edwards Drive trailhead would also provide access to the river bar and feature a community-
selected art piece. At the northern terminus, the Davis Street trailhead improvements include
regrading and thinning of dense vegetation. At each end of the trail, users will find directional &
interpretive signage, seating, and waste receptacles. Along the path will be interpretive signage
and a connection to an existing footpath to the river.

It is staff’s recommendation that the City Council approve the attached Resolution No. 1534-
2022 Authorizing the City Manager to Execute Agreements with the California Department of
Transportation for the City of Rio Dell Clean California Local Grant Programs: 1) Rio Dell
Gateway Beautification and 2) Eel River Trail

Attachments:

RESOLUTION NO. 1534-2022 RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
RIO DELL AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE AGREEMENTS WITH
THE CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION FOR THE CITY OF RIO
DELL CLEAN CALIFORNIA LOCAL GRANT PROGRAMS 1) RIO DELL GATEWAY
BEAUTIFICATION AND 2) EEL RIVER TRAIL



CIry OF

DECL

RESOLUTION NO. 1534-2022
RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF RIO DELL
AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE AGREEMENTS WITH THE
CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION FOR THE CITY OF RIO DELL
CLEAN CALIFORNIA LOCAL GRANT PROGRAMS 1) RIO DELL GATEWAY
BEAUTIFICATION AND 2) EEL RIVER TRAIL

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Rio Dell is eligible to receive Federal
and/or State funding for certain transportation planning related plans, through the
California Department of Transportation;

WHEREAS, the City of Rio Dell has applied for and received two Clean California
Grants for the 1) Rio Dell Gateway Beautification and 2) Eel River Trail;

WHEREAS, a Restricted Grant Agreement is needed to be executed with the
California Department of Transportation before such funds can be claimed through the
Clean California Local Grant Program;

WHEREAS, the City of Rio Dell wishes to delegate authorization to execute
these agreements and any amendments thereto;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Rio Dell,
authorize the City Manager, or designee, to execute all Restricted Grant Agreements
and any amendments thereto with the California Department of Transportation Clean

Callifornia Local Grant Programs 1) Rio Dell Gateway Beautification and 2) Eel River
Trail.

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the forgoing Resolution was PASSED, APPROVED, and
ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Rio Dell on April 19, 2022 by the following
vote: ‘



Ayes:

Noes:

Absent:

Abstain:

Mayor Debra Garnes

ATTEST:

|, Karen Dunham, City Clerk for the City of Rio Dell, State of California, hereby certify
the above and foregoing to be a full, true, and correct copy of Resolution No. 1534-2022
adopted by the City Council of the City of Rio Dell April 19, 2022.

Karen Dunham, City Clerk, City of Rio Dell
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Staff Highlights — 2022-04-19

City Council

City Manager

Meeting with CalTrans Rep for the Clean California Program Grants and discussions with City
Engineer on moving forward botany study of the area.

Meetings with contractor on street paving project, site visits.
Newsletter issuance.

Setup for annual cleanup day on Saturday, May 7, 2022. The event will take place from 9:00am
to 1:00pm.

Interviews for open positions in Public Works.
Meeting with Chief of Police Ad Hoc.

City Clerk

Processed One (1) Building Permit Application:
240 Stream St. — New Furnace

Processed Two (2) Business License Applications:

Parker Hall — Tractor Work/Brush Removal
Lost Coast Power Washing — Gavin Gurney

Processéd One (1) Encroachment Permit

Sewer Lateral/Cleanouts — 223 Belleview Ave.

Misc:

Submitted Quarterly Seismic Activity Report to Dept. of Conservation
Submitted Quarterly SB 1473 Report to Calif. Building Standards Commission

Submitted Quarterly SB 1186 Report to Division of the State Architect
Submitted April Employment Data to Bureau of Labor Statistics
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City Attorney

Human Resources, Risk & Training

Finance Department

Public Works Water

Public Works Wastewater

Sewer lateral inspection at 223 Belleview Ave.
Automatic transfer switches arrived at the plant for the lift station generator project.
Commissioned the Tesla batteries at Corp yard. Waiting for PG&E approval to operate

GHD meeting to discuss SSES: structural modifications to effluent line for irrigation field test run with
Chloramines, Schedule CCTV of the collection system and Painter St. construction grant application.

Spring cleaning and mowing at the Corp yard.
Routine collection system cleaning.
Submitted rough draft of Wastewater Budget to finance.

Operations staff is working on a parts list and rough design for Ammonia monitoring of Effluent:
Chloramine project.

Public Works Streets, Buildings and Grounds

Public Works City Engineer

Public Works Capital Projects

Police Department

The Department had the following statistics for the period of March 30 to April 12, 2022. This period of
time saw average numbers for all of the metrics. Staffing was reduced during the reporting period due
to training and vacations. The summation of Calls for Service may greater than the total as multiple
officers can now be assigned to the same call for service. There may also be administrative calls for
service that are not documented below.

Officer Calls for Service Reports Arrests
Conner 18 2 0
Beauchaine 1 0 0
Landry 50 8 5
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Burns 57 4 2
Johnson 65 12 7
Fielder 7 1 1
Clark 27 0 N/A
Totals 14.4 27 15
Averages 14.2 per day 13.5 per week 7.5 per week
2021 Yearly Average 15.6 per day 14.2 per week 5.7 per week
Calls for Service at 355 Center Street
Type ‘Date Time | Llocation | Primary | Case# o
415N 04/01/2022 07:27:01 355 CENTER ST R615
FU 04/04/2022 15:48:52 355 CENTER ST 6X3
Vi 04/08/2022 08:27:25 355 CENTER ST R615
CUSTODY 04/08/2022 13:34:25 355 CENTER ST 652
CIVIL 04/11/2022 14:06:33 355 CENTER ST  6S2

FU — Follow-up or other generic call for service
VI = Vehicle investigation

415N - Noise complaint

CUSTODY — Child custody issue

CIVIL — Attempt to mediate a civil issue

R615 — Officer Liam Burns
6S2 — Corporal Crystal Landry
6X3 — Community Services Officer Mary Clark

During the period of March 30 to April 12, 2022, there were 4 calls for service related to animal control
issues. One cat was transported to Miranda’s Rescue. Chief Conner helped a concerned citizen free a
goat that had become entangled in a rope fence. The more the goat struggled, the mire ensnared it
became. When the goat was finally cut free, it took a while to catch its breath, but eventually rose to its
feet. It then limped off and joined the horses it shared the pasture with.

The Department has started to collect stop data as required by the Race and Identity Profiling Act of
2015. The following charts show the data for gender, race, searched by race, and arrested by race in the
month of march, 2022. There were 41 detentions/searches in that time period. We have started to
submit our data to the Department of Justice. Larger agencies have been doing this since 2018 and so
there is data viewable for the years 2018 and 2019 at the site State of California Department of Justice -

Openlustice
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RDPD Stop Data - Gender

NON-BINARY n
TRANSGENDER FEMALE n

TRANSGENDER MALE u

FEMALE

MALE

WHITE -

PACIFIC ISLANDER

NATIVE AMERICAN

MIDDLE EASTERN OR SE ASIAN
HISPANIC/LATINO

BLACK

ASIAN

| Male

# Female

m Transgender Male

® Transgender Female

# Non-Binary

H Asian

m Black

m Hispanic/Latino

m Middle Eastern or SE Asian
# Native American

m Pacific Islander

m White
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RDPD Stop Data - Search by Race

white it

PACIFIC ISLANDER m Asian

m Black
NATIVE AMERICAN ac

® Hispanic/Latino

MIDDLE EASTERN OR SE... X r
® Middle Eastern or SE Asian

HISPANIC/LATINO ® Native American

BLACK m Pacific Islander

® White
ASIAN

o
R s

10 15

RDPD Stop Data - Arrest by Race

white | —

PACIFIC ISLANDER W Asian

mBl

NATIVE AMERICAN ack
m Hispanic/Latino
MIDDLE EASTERN OR SE...

m Middle Eastern or SE Asian

HISPANIC/LATINO m Native American

.ﬁl

BLACK m Pacific Islander

5 | i m White
ASIAN

During the week of March 23 to March 30, officers made numerous contacts with a homeless woman
who was camped near the intersection of Monument and Sequoia. Officers made numerous attempts
to offer assistance including rides and bus passes, but the woman refused to leave. On March 30, a
relative made a citizen’s arrest when the woman trespassed on his property after numerous warnings
and stole his fishing license. She was taken into custody and transported to the jail without serious
incident. She does not appear to have returned.

On April 10, 2022, Corporal Landry responded to a residence in Fortuna where a woman told Fortuna
officers that she had been assaulted by her husband in Rio Dell. Corporal Landry learned that the man
had been filleting fish when an argument ensued. The man placed a knife to the woman’s throat and
threatened to kill her if she did not leave him alone. The woman fled to her mother’s house. Corporal
Landry and Officer Johnson went to the family’s residence in Rio Dell and took the man into custody. He




admitted threatening his wife, but claimed that she had threatened him first. He was booked into the
jail, but has since been released on bail.

Code Enforcement

During the period of March 30 to April 12, 2022, the Department opened one new code enforcement
cases dealing with junk or inoperable vehicles and closed four. Of the closed cases, two cars were
towed by the City while the other two were moved by their owners. At the end of this reporting period,
there were six open cases involving junk vehicles.

During the period of March 30 to April 12, 2022, the Department did not open any new cases or close
any old cases.

Community Development Department

Intergovernmental

Humboldt-Rio Dell Business Park
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675 Wildwood Avenue CIry Of

Rio Dell, CA 95562 M
(707) 764-3532 . ‘ RI O

(707) 764-5480 (fax) D

ELL
April 13,2022 e
TO: Rio Dell City Council

THROUGH: Kyle Knopp, City Manager
FROM: Cheryl Dillingham, Finance Director &D

SUBJECT: Fiscal Year 2020-21 Audited Financial Statements

IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT THE CITY COUNCIL:

Receive presentation by JJA CPA, Inc. on the City’s audited financial statements and
accompanying information.

BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION:

Each year an independent auditing firm audits and prepares financial statements for the City of
Rio Dell in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) and the
standards for financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that an audit be performed to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

The City received an unqualified opinion and no material weaknesses were identified. An
unqualified opinion means that the auditor has concluded the financial statements present fairly
the results of the City’s operations and its financial position according to generally accepted
accounting principles. A material weakness is one or more deficiencies in internal control where
a reasonable possibility exists that a material misstatement will not be prevented, detected, or
corrected in a timely manner. The auditor found no such weaknesses.

The auditing firm of JJA CPA, Inc. will present to Council the Fiscal year 2020-21 audited
Financial Statements and accompanying information.

ATTACHMENTS:

Annual Financial Report for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021
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CITY OF RIO DELL, CALIFORNIA

ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED

JUNE 30, 2021

CITY OF

RIO*
Vel

w, G/ LIFORNIA

Prepared by:

Cheryl Dillingham

Finance Director
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JJACPA, Inc.

A Protessional Accountcing Services Corp.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Rio Dell
Rio Dell, California

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each
major fund, the aggregate remaining fund information, and the budgetary comparison information of the City of Rio Dell,
California (City), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2021, and the related notes to the financial statements, which
collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.
Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial
position of the govemmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, the aggregate remaining fund
information, and the budgetary comparison information of the City, as of June 30, 2021, and the respective changes in
financial position and, where dpplicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

7080 Donlon Way, Suite 204, Dublin, CA 94568 e phone (925) 556-6200 e fax: (707) 232-6226
1102 South Main Street, #1, Fort Bragg, CA 95437 e phone (707) 964-6325
WWwWw jjacpa.com
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To the Honorable Mayor and City Council
The City of Rio Dell

Rio Dell, California

Page 2

Emphasis of Matter
Implementation of New GASB Pronouncement

As discussed in Note 1 to the basic financial statements, the City implemented Governmental Accounting Standards Board
(“GASB”) Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities during the year. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s discussion and
analysis on pages 3—16 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of
the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an
essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or
historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management
about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic
financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited
procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the
City’s basic financial statements. The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and the introductory
section are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements are the responsibility of management and were derived
from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and
other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our
opinion, the combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements is fairly stated, in all material respects, in
relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

The introductory section has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
statements, and accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on it.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated March 16, 2022 on our
consideration of the City's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions
of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope
of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide
an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering City’s internal control over financial
reporting and compliance.

SIS CPY Sno.

March 16, 2022 JJACPA, Inc.
Dublin, CA
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For the year ended June 30, 2021

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

This section provides a narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City of Rio
Dell (City) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021. It should be read in conjunction with the
accompanying transmittal letter and basic financial statements.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

This section of the annual financial report provides a narrative overview and analysis of the financial
activities of the City of Rio Dell (City) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021. It should be read in
conjunction with the accompanying transmittal letter and basic financial statements.

The following outlines the financial highlights for the year:

¢

At June 30, 2021, the City’s net position (excess of assets and deferred outflows of resources of
the City over liabilities and deferred inflows of resources) was $31,676,649, an increase of
$1,653,921 from the prior year. Of the total net position, $22,123,575 was invested in capital
assets (net of related debt) and $732,218 had restrictions in their use leaving $8,820,856 as
unrestricted.

Overall City-wide revenues from all governmental and business-type activities increased by
$349,396, 6% compared to FY 2019-20. The increase is primarily due to increased sales and
cannabis tax revenues. The City’s total expenses for all programs in FY 2020-21 increased by
$382,301, or 9%.

Overall the City’s total net position increased by $1,653,921 ($1,445,891 and $208,030 for
governmental activities and business-type activities, respectively). Total city-wide assets
increased $542,786. This primarily was the result of an increase in cash.

The General Fund reported a fund balance of $2,594,257 at the end of the 2021 fiscal year, an
increase of $369,395. This change was the result of increased Cannabis revenues and additional
sales tax revenues. :

The City also ended the fiscal year with $4,916,088 reported in the proprietary enterprise funds
(the amount of net position available for use, including unrestricted net position, but excluding
the investment in capital assets net of related debt). This is an increase of $659,945 from 2020
and is a result of unrestricted water funds increasing by $438,171 to $2,713,865 and
unrestricted sewer funds increasing by $221,774 to $2,202,223.
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For the year ended June 30, 2021

Management’s Discussion and Analysis, Continued

OVERVIEVW OF THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
The Basic Financial Statements

The Basic Financial Statements are comprised of the Government-wide Financial Statements and the
Fund Financial Statements; these two sets of financial statements provide two different views of the
City’s financial activities and financial position.

Government-wide Financial Statements

The Government-wide Financial Statements provide a broad overview of the City’s activities as a
whole and are comprised of the Statement of Net position and the Statement of Activities. The
Statement of Net position provides information about the financial position of the City as a whole,
including all its capital assets and long-term liabilities on the full accrual basis, similar to that used by
private sector entities. The Statement of Activities provides information about all the City’s revenues
and all its expenses, also on the full accrual basis, with the emphasis on measuring net revenues or
expenses of each the City’s programs. The Statement of Activities explains in detail the change in Net
position for the year.

All of the City’s activities are grouped into Governmental Activities and Business-type activities, as
explained below. All the amounts in the Statement of Net position and the Statement of Activities are
separated into Governmental Activities and Business-type Activities in order to provide a summary of
these two activities of the City as a whole.

Government-wide financial statements, prepared on the accrual basis, measure the flow of all
economic resources of the City. There are two basic statements presented here: the Statement of Net
Position and Statement of Activities. These statements present information about the following
activities.

¢ Governmental activities — All of the City’s basic services are considered to be governmental
activities, including general government, community development, parks and recreation, public
safety, animal control, engineering, community events, public improvements, planning and zoning,
building inspections, and general administration. These services are supported by general City
revenues such as taxes and by specific program revenues such as developer fees.

¢ Business-type activities — All the City’s enterprise activities are reported here, including Water and
Sewer. Unlike governmental services, these services are supported by charges paid by users based
on the amount of the service they use.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis, Continued

OVERVIEW OF THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT, Continued

Fund Financial Statements

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been
segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City, like other state and local governments, uses
fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of
the funds of the City can be divided into two categories: governmental funds and proprietary funds.

Governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions
reported as governmental activities in the Government-wide Financial Statements. However, unlike the
Government-wide Financial Statements, Governmental Fund Financial Statements focus on near-term
inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at
the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a government’s near-term
financing requirements.

Because the focus of the Governmental Fund Financial Statements is narrower than that of the
Government-wide Financial Statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for
governmental funds with similar information presented for governmental activities in the Government-
wide Financial Statement. By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the
government’s near-term financial decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the
governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a
reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.
The Governmental Fund Financial Statements provide detailed information about each of the City’s
most significant funds, called major funds. The concept of major funds, and the determination of which
are major funds, was established by GASB Statement No. 34 and replaces the concept of combining
like funds and presenting them as one total. Instead, each major fund is presented individually, with all
nonmajor funds summarized and presented only in a single column. Subordinate schedules present the
detail of these nonmajor funds. Major funds present the major activities of the City for the year, and
may change from year to year as a result of changes in the pattern of the City’s activities.

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021, the City’s major funds are as follows:

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS:

¢ General Fund
¢ CDBG Special Revenue Fund
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis, Continued

OVERVIEW OF THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT, Continued
Fund Financial Statements, Continued

PROPRIETARY FUNDS:

¢ Water Enterprise Fund
¢ Sewer Enterprise Fund

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021, the City adopted annual appropriated budgets for all
governmental funds.

Proprietary funds. The City maintains Enterprise-type funds. Enterprise funds are used to report the
same functions presented as business-type activities in the Government-wide Financial Statements.
The City uses enterprise funds to account for Water and Sewer activities. The proprietary fund
financial statements provide separate information for all of these operations.

Fiduciary Statements

The City’s fiduciary activities are reported in the separate Statement of Fiduciary Net Position. These
activities are excluded from the City’s other financial statements because the City cannot use these
assets to finance its own operations. The fiduciary statements provide financial information about the
activities of special deposits for which the City acts solely as an agent. They provide information
about the cash balances and activities of these funds.

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in
the Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements. The notes to the basic financial statements can
be found on pages 43-72 of this report.

Combining and Individual Fund Financial Statements and Schedules
The combining statements referred to earlier in connection with nonmajor governmental funds are

presented immediately following the notes to the financial statements. Combining and individual fund
statements can be found on pages 76-89 of this report.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis, Continued

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial
position. In the case of the City, assets exceeded liabilities by $31,676,649 as of June 30, 2021. The
Summary of Net position as of June 30, 2021, and 2020, follows:

Summary of Net Position

2021 2020
Govern- Business- Govern- Business-
mental type mental type
Activities Activities Total Activities Activities Total
Current and other assets $ 4827706 $ 5498443 §$ 10,326,149 §$ 5,136,662 $ 4,856,441 $ 9,993,103
Noncurrent assets 6,671,986 21,710,194 28,382,180 5,690,687 22,481,753 28,172,440
Total assets 11,499,692 27,208,637 38,708,329 10,827,349 27,338,194 38,165,543
~ Current and other liabilities 131,733 542,095 673,828 931,185 564,215 1,495,400
Long-term liabilities 58,987 6,298,865 6,357,852 33,083 6,614,332 6,647,415
Total liabilities 190,720 6,840,960 7,031,680 964,268 7,178,547 8,142,815
Net position:
Net invested in
Capital Assets 6,671,986 15,451,589 22,123,575 5,690,687 15,903,504 21,594,191
Restricted 732,218 - 732,218 436,569 - 436,569
Unrestricted 3,904,768 4,916,088 8,820,856 3,735,825 4,256,143 7,991,968
Total net position $ 11,308,972 $ 20,367,677 $ 31,676,649 § 9,863,081 § 20,159,647 $ 30,022,728

The City’s total net position increased by $1,653,921 ($1,445,891 for governmental activities and
$208,030 for business-type activities). Total city-wide assets increased $542,786. This was mostly the
result of an increase in cash. Total current city-wide liabilities decreased by $1,111,135, primarily due
to elimination of accounts payable for construction costs on the ATP streets project. Debt service
principle (long-term liabilities) for the wastewater treatment plant and the water system infiltration
gallery decreased $315,690. Total city-wide liabilities, not including deferred outflows and inflows of
resources decreased by $1,111,135.

About 2.3% or $732,218 of City-wide net position represents resources that are subject to external
restrictions on how they may be used. The remaining unrestricted net position of $8.8 million may be
used to meet the government’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors. Of this amount,
$3,904,768 is held by governmental activities and $4,916,088 is held by business-type activities.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis, Continued

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS, Continued

Revenues

The City’s total revenues for governmental and business-type activities were $6,126,443 for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2021, an increase of $349,396. Significant revenues for the City for FY 2020-21

were derived from taxes (25%), operating grants and contributions (18%), and charges for services
(43%).

The following discusses variances in key revenues from the prior fiscal year:

¢ Charges for Services - Annual receipts for business-type activities increased $133,219, or
5%. Governmental activities increased 70,199, primarily due to cannabis permitting fees,
planning and building fees, and nuisance abatements.

¢ Grants and Contributions - Annual receipts decreased by $421,195. This was due to
funding received for the ATP streets construction project in the prior year.

¢ Other Taxes - Annual receipts increased $154,668. This represents revenues from the
cannabis tax.

Expenses

Governmental and business-type activity expenses of the City for the year totaled $4,472,522. This is
an increase of $382,301 from the prior fiscal year. Governmental activity expenses totaled $1,660,082,
or 37% of total expenses. Business-type activities accounted for $2,812,440 of expenses during the
fiscal year, an increase of $261,334 due mainly to grant funded sewer study costs. Public safety -
Police costs represented 55% of total governmental activities expenses, General Government activities
were 20% and Public Works was 16%. The remaining 9% were Planning and Building and Recycling
costs.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis, Continued

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS, Continued

The change in net position for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2021, and 2020, follows:

Changes in Net Position

2021 2020
Govern- Business- Govern- Business-
mental type mental type
Activities Activities Total Activities Activities Total
Revenues:
Program revenues:
Charges for services $ 161,944 § 2474435 § 2636379 $ 91,745 § 2,341,216 2,432,961
Grants and contributions:
Operating 238,796 133,111 371,907 188,624 64,765 253,389
Capital 599,430 171,329 770,759 1,020,625 115,357 1,135,982
General revenues:
Property taxes, levied for
general purposes 148,127 - 148,127 137,848 - 137,848
Sales taxes 809,947 - 809,947 573,424 - 573,424
Cannabis taxes 347,772 347,772 193,104 193,104
Transient occupancy tax 20,597 - 20,597 11,797 - 11,797
Gas taxes 142,803 - 142,803 141,699 - 141,699
Franchise taxes 93,626 - 93,626 87,139 - 87,139
Motor vehicle in lieu 424,496 - 424 496 409,738 - 409,738
Use of money and property 102,193 16,197 118,390 70,089 54,438 124,527
Contributed capital - 222,344 222,344 - 211,300 211,300
Other general 16,242 3,054 19,296 16,694 47,445 64,139
Total revenues 3,105,973 3,020,470 6,126,443 2,942,526 2,834 521 5,777,047
Expenses:
Governmental activities:
General government 336,910 - 336,910 302,068 - 302,068
Public safety - Police 919,224 - 919,224 786,994 - 786,994
Public works 269,562 - 269,562 319,966 - 319,966
Planning and building 128,038 - 128,038 121,821 - 121,821
Recycling 6,348 - 6,348 8,266 - 8,266
Business-type activities:
Sewer - 1,615,712 1,615,712 - 1,639,983 1,639,983
Water - 1,196,728 1,196,728 - 911,123 911,123
Total expenses 1,660,082 2,812,440 4,472 522 1,539,115 2,551,106 4,090,221
Excess (Deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures before transfers 1,445,891 208,030 1,653,921 1,403,411 283,415 1,686,826
Transfers - - - - - -
Change in net position 1,445,891 208,030 1,653,921 1,403,411 283,415 1,686,826
Net position:
Beginning of year 9,863,081 20,159,647 30,022,728 8,459,670 19,876,232 28,335,902
End of year $ 11,308,972 § 20,367,677 § 31,676,649 $ 9.863,081 § 20,159,647 30,022,728

-34-



City of Rio Dell, California
Basic Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2021

Management’s Discussion and Analysis, Continued

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS, Continued

Governmental Activities

The following table shows the cost of each of the City’s major programs and the net cost of the
programs. Net cost is the total cost less fees and other direct revenue generated by the activities. The
net cost reflects the financial burden that was placed on the City’s taxpayers by each of the programs.
The total cost of services and the net cost of services for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2021, and

2020, are as follows:

2021

Total Cost
of Services

302,068
786,994
319,966
121,821

8,266

Total Cost

of Services
General government $ 336910
Public safety - Police 919,224
Public works 269,562
Planning and building 128,038
Recycling 6,348
Total $§ 1,660,082

1,539,115

Total expenses for governmental activities were $1,660,082 which was $120,967 or 8% more than the
prior year. Public Works had a negative “Net Cost of Services” due to the addition of infrastructure
funded by a grant from the State through the Active Transportation Program (ATP).
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis, Continued

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS, Continued
Governmental Activities, continued

Revenues by source for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2021, and 2020, are as follows:
Revenues by Source - Governmental Activities 2020

Other general,
$16,242,0.5%

Use of money and
property, $102,193,

33%
Motor vehicle in lieu,

$424,496, 13.7% \

Other taxes,
$347,772,11.2%

Charges for services,
$161,944 ,5.2%

Operating grants,
$238,796,7.7%

Capital grants,
$599,430, 19.3%

Franchise taxes,
$93,626,3.0%
Gas taxes, $142,803,

4 6% Property taxes,
S (1]

$148,127,4.8%

Transient Occupancy
Tax, $20,597,0.7% Sales tax, $809,947,
26.1%

Revenues by Source - Governmental Activities 2020
Use of money and Other general,
property, $70,089, $16,694,0.6%

2.4%
Motor vehicle in lieu,

$409,738, 13.9% \

Other taxes,

$193,104, 6.6%
Franchise taxes, e e e
$87,139,3.0%

Gas taxes, $141,699 ,
4.8%

Charges for services,
$91,745,3.1%

Operating grants,
$188,624,6.4%

Capital grants,
\sl,ozo,szs ,34.7%

Transient Occupancy
Tax, $11,797,0.4%

Sales tax, $573,424, \
19.5% Property taxes,

$137,848,4.7%
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis, Continued

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS, Continued

Business-type Activities

Business-type activities have increased the City’s net position by $208,030. The City has two business-
type activities: Sewer and Water Operations. The operating revenues and expenses for the business-
type activities for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2021, and 2020, are as follows:

Operating Revenues and Expenses
Business-type Activities

2021
$2,000,000 -+
|
$1,500,000 -
i % Operating revenues
i
$1,000,000 ’ = Operating expenses
$500,000 -
$_ ,_’ B
Operating Revenues and Expenses
Business-type Activities
2020
$2,000,000 -
E
$1,500,000 - “ Operating revenues
| 7 “ Operating expenses
$1,000,000 -
$500,000 -
Sewer Water
12
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis, Continued

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS, Continued
Business-type Activities, continued

The revenues by source for the business-type activities for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2021, and
2020, are as follows:

Revenues by Source - Business-type Activities 2021

Other general
revenues, $3,054

0% \
Contributed capital,

$222344,7%  \

Investment earnings,
$16,202, 1%
Capital grants and__—"

contributions, y
$171,329, 6%
Charges for services,
$2,474,435 , 82%
Operating grants and
contributions,
$133,111, 4%

Revenues by Source - Business-type Activities 2020

Other general
revenues,
$47,445 ,2%

~

Contributed capital,
$211,300, 7%

Investment earnings, _——
y $54,438 ,2%

Capital grants and_— e
contributions,
$115,357,4% ! Charges for services,
/ $2,341,216, 83%
Operating grants and
contributions,

$64,765 , 2%

13

-38-



City of Rio Dell, California
Basic Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2021

Management’s Discussion and Analysis, Continued

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS, Continued
Financial Analysis of the Government’s Funds

The City of Rio Dell uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related
legal requirements. The fund financial statements focus on individual parts of the City government,
reporting the City’s operations in more detail than the government-wide financial statements.

Governmental funds. The City’s governmental funds provide information on near-term inflows,
outflows, and balances of spending resources. At the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021, the City’s
governmental funds reported combined fund balances of $3,895,108. This is an increase of $667,905
or 20% from last year. This primarily results from revenues exceeding expenditures in the various
governmental funds.

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the City. At the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021,
General Fund unassigned fund balance totaled $2,557,017. This is an increase of $363,467 or 16%
from the prior year. This increase mainly resulted from higher than anticipated sales and cannabis tax
revenues and capital projects not being completed.

The governmental funds allowed the City to undertake several capital and special projects in FY 2020-
21. The State provided funds through the Active Transportation Program (ATP) for a project which
will enhance non-motorized user safety on city streets. ATP funding is meant to encourage increased
use of active modes of transportation. This project started construction in FY 2019-20 and was
completed in FY 2020-21. Additionally, the city General Fund provided funding for a streets slurry
seal project, asphalt street resurfacing, and three new police vehicles.

Proprietary funds. The City ended the fiscal year with $4,916,088 reported in the proprietary
enterprise funds (the amount of net position available for use, including unrestricted net position, but
excluding the investment in capital assets net of related debt). This is an increase of $659,945 from
2020. The increase is a result of the change in net position in the water funds of $438, 171 and
$221,774 in the sewer funds.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

The difference between the final budget and actual revenues differs favorably by $781,699, or 62%
over budgeted amounts. This was mainly due to increased sales tax and cannabis revenue. Actual
expenditures were $753,892, or 31% lower than final budgeted amounts. The lower expenditures were
largely due to capital projects not being completed, unused contingency funds and vacant positions in
the Police Department. There was a $670,542 difference between the total original expenditure budget
and the total final amended budget.

14
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis, Continued

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS, Continued

The City’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as of June 30,
2021, amount to $28,382,180. This investment in capital assets includes land, construction in progress,
streets, medians, sidewalks, buildings, water and sewer infrastructure, machinery, equipment, and

vehicles.

Capital Assets

The City’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as of June 30,
2021, amount to $28,382,180. This investment in capital assets includes land, construction in progress,
streets, medians, sidewalks, buildings, water and sewer infrastructure, machinery, equipment, and

vehicles.

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Totals

2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
Land b 627,945 § 627,945  § 507,859 § 507,859 1,135,804 § 1,135,804
Construction in progress 1,812,740 1,107,729 - - 1,812,740 1,107,729
Buildings and structures 279,783 290,970 14,876 11,896 294,659 302,866
Equipment 80,600 68,469 211,961 233,422 292,561 301,891
Vehicles 174,467 36,310 56,287 45,677 230,754 81,987
Streets and roads 1,897,964 1,712,651 - - 1,897,964 1,712,651
Infrastructures 1,798,487 1,846,613 20,919,211 21,682,899 22,717,698 23,529,512

Total b 6,671,986 $ 5690,687 § 21710,194 § 22,481,753 28,382,180 § 28,172,440

More detail of the capital assets and current activity can be found in the notes to the financial
statements on page 49 for significant accounting policies and-Note 5 on pages 59 — 60 for other capital

asset information.

Long-Term Debt

At June 30, 2021, the City had $6,688,059 in long-term liabilities. Additional information about the

City’s long-term debt can be found in Note 7 to the basic financial statements.

Compensated absences
Safe Drinking Water Loan
State of California Water
Resouces Control Board
Total

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Totals
2020 2020 2020 2020 2020 2021
§ 65541 $ 36,759 § 44269 § 40,092 109,810 § 76,851
- - 1,156,000 1,292,000 1,156,000 1,292,000
- - 5,422,249 5,601,940 5,422,249 5,601,940
§ 65541 § 36,759 § 6,622,518 § 6,934,032 6,688,059 § 6,970,791
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City of Rio Dell, California
Basic Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2021

Management’s Discussion and Analysis, Continued

Economic Outlook and Next Year’s Budget and Rates

The budget for Fiscal Year 2021-22, was adopted on June 1, 2021, is balanced and the economic
outlook for the near term is uncertain but considered stable. The overall stabilization is a result of a
diverse tax base due the passage of Measure J (1% sales tax) and Measure X (cannabis tax), a lack of
pension debt and utility rates that currently meet operating and capital costs.

Tax revenues, particularly property and sales taxes, continue to be steady through economic cycles
which provides stability to the City’s financial position. These revenues have increased modestly and
have seen minimal impacts from the pandemic. In addition, the City’s tax revenue base was broadened
with the passage of Measure U in 2014, the City’s 1% add-on tax. Measure U expired in 2021 and
thanks to community support Measure J was passed and extends the sales tax through 2024.

The City’s business tax on medical and recreational marijuana, Measure X was voted in on November
7, 2017 and approved and permitted commercial cannabis activity within the City limits. Estimated
cannabis tax revenues exceed property tax revenues for the first time in the FY 2021-22 budget.
Cannabis is a volatile revenue source that can be negatively impacted by reductions in price and
increased competition. Maintaining and growing the City’s revenue base continues to be a high
priority.

The City’s traditional revenue base is not keeping up with expenses. Salary and benefits costs are the
largest expense category and it has become a challenge to provide salaries that are competitive enough
to recruit and retain qualified employees. Additionally, costs for other services continue to rise such as
dispatch, information systems and animal control. It is anticipated that the cost of doing business will
continue to increase.

It has been over five years since a rate study has been done for sewer and water services. The budget
contains funding for a new rate study. Regulatory oversight, capital planning and replacement and
employee retention are factors contributing to the need for a rate review and update. The City must go
through the Proposition 218 process to continue to add an annual inflation factor to rates because the
authority expires after five years. It is anticipated that new rates will go into effect in FY 2022-23.

In summary, the City enters FY 2021-22 in a strong financial position due to past efforts made to
stabilize both revenues and expenditures. The budget reinvests in the city, maintains services and
reserves and creates a positive path forward. - While vulnerabilities exist, some within the City’s
control and some not, the City believes it has taken, and will continue to take, the actions necessary to
create a sustainable financial future.

Requests for Information
This Annual Financial Report is intended to provide citizens, taxpayers, investors, and creditors with a

general overview of the City’s finances. If you have any questions about this report, or need additional
financial information contact the City of Rio Dell Finance Department, 675, Rio Dell, CA 95562.
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City of Rio Dell, California
Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2021

ASSETS
Current assets:

Cash and investments

Receivables:

Accounts
Intergovernmental
Interest

Loans/Notes receivable

Prepaid items
Total current assets

Noncurrent assets:

Capital assets:
Nondepreciable
Depreciable
Total noncurrent assets
Total assets

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Interest payable
Deposits payable
Compensated absences - current portion
Due within one year
Total current liabilities
Noncurrent liabilities:
Long-term liabilities:
Compensated absences
Due after one year
Total noncurrent liabilities
Total liabilities

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted

Total net position

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources and

net position

Governmental Business-type

Activities Activities Total
$ 3,260,948 $ 4,982,613 8,243,561
513,335 361,535 874,870
207,421 84,164 291,585
1,343 2,131 3,474
807,419 - 807,419
37,240 68,000 105,240
4,827,706 5,498,443 10,326,149
2,440,685 507,895 2,948,580
4,231,301 21,202,299 25,433,600
6,671,986 21,710,194 28,382,180
$ 11,499,692 $ 27,208,637 38,708,329
$ 125,179 $ 47,843 173,022
- 79,526 79,526
- 91,073 91,073
6,554 4,009 10,563
- 319,644 319,644
131,733 542,095 673,828
58,987 40,260 99,247
- 6,258,605 6,258,605
58,987 6,298,865 6,357,852
190,720 6,840,960 7,031,680
6,671,986 15,451,589 22,123,575
732,218 - 732,218
3,904,768 4,916,088 8,820,856
11,308,972 20,367,677 31,676,649
$ 11,499,692 $ 27,208,637 38,708,329

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these basic financial statements.
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City of Rio Dell, California

Statement of Activities
For the year ended June 30, 2021

Program Revenues

Operating Capital
Charges for Grants and Grants and
Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions Contributions
Primary government:
Governmental activities:
General government 336,910 91,486 66,012 $ -
Public safety - Police 919,224 - 167,784 -
Public works 269,562 6,030 - 599,430
Planning and building 128,038 60,082 - -
Recycling 6,349 4,346 5,000 -
Total governmental activities 1,660,083 161,944 238,796 599,430
Business-type activities:
Sewer 1,615,712 1,341,331 133,111 -
Water 1,196,728 1,133,104 - 171,329
Total business-type activities 2,812,440 2,474,435 133,111 171,329
Total primary government 4,472,523 $ 2,636,379 $ 371,907 $ 770,759

General revenues:

Taxes:

Property taxes, levied for general purposes

Sales taxes

Cannabis taxes

Transient occupancy taxes

Gas taxes

Franchise taxes

Intergovernmental:

State motor vehicle in-lieu tax (MVLF)

Use of money and property

Contributed capital

Other general revenues
Total general revenues

Transfers

Total general revenues and transfers

Change in net position

Net position:

Beginning of year

End of year

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these basic financial statements.
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Net (Expense) Revenue and
Changes in Net Position

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Totals

$ (179,412) - (179,412)
(751,440) - (751,440)
335,898 - 335,898
(67,956) - (67,956)

2,997 - 2,997
(659,913) - (659,913)
- (141,270) (141,270)

- 107,705 107,705
- (33,565) (33,565)
(659,913) (33,565) (693,478)
148,127 - 148,127
809,947 - 809,947
347,772 347,772

20,597 - 20,597

142,803 - 142,803

93,626 - 93,626

424,496 # 595,825
102,187 16,197 118,384

- 222,344 222,344

16,249 3,054 19,303
2,105,804 241,595 2,347,399
2,105,804 241,595 2,347,399
1,445,891 208,030 1,653,921
9,863,081 20,159,647 30,022,728

$ 11,308,972 20,367,677 31,676,649
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FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MAJOR FUNDS
Fund Description
Governmental Funds: Governmental funds are used for taxes and grants.
General Primary operating fund of the City; accounts for all activities

except those legally or administratively required to be accounted
for in other funds.

CDBG Housing Special Revenue Accounts for activities related to housing and the related CDBG
funding.
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City of Rio Dell, California
Balance Sheet

Governmental Funds

June 30,2021
Major Funds
Nonmajor
General CDBG Governmental
Fund Special Revenue Funds Totals
ASSETS
Cash and investments 1,933,264 § 40599 $ 921,688 § 3,260,948
Receivables:
Interest 1,196 - 147 1,343
Intergovernmental - - 207,421 207,421
Loans/Notes receivable - 807,419 - 807,419
Other receivable 460,151 - 53,184 513,335

Due from other funds 269,037 - - 269,037

Prepaid items 37,240 - - 37,240
Total assets 2,700,888 $ 1,213,415 § 1,182,440 § 5,096,743

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS
AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 106,631 § - § 18,548  § 125,179

Due to other funds - - 269,037 269,037
Total liabilities 106,631 - 287,585 394,216

Deferred inflows of resources:

Unavailable revenue - 807,419 - 807,419
Total deferred inflows of resources: - 807,419 - 807,419
Total Liabilities and deferred inflows 106,631 807,419 287,585 1,201,635

Fund balances:

Nonspendable 37,240 - - 37,240

Restricted - 405,996 326,222 732,218

Assigned - - 572,719 572,719

Unassigned (Deficit) 2,557,017 - (4,086) 2,552,931
Total fund balances 2,594,257 405,996 894,855 3,895,108
Total liabilities, deferred inflows and
fund balances 2,700,888 § 1213415 $§ 1,182440 $ 5,096,743

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these basic financial statements.
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City of Rio Dell, California

Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet
to the Statement of Net Position

June 30, 2021

Total fund balances - total governmental funds

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Position are
different because: '

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not current financial
resources and, therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds balance
sheet.

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and,
therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds balance sheet.

Compensated absences

Governmental funds notes receivable from various loan programs are
deferred under the current financial resources measurement focus. The notes
receivable are recognized in the government-wide Statement of Net Position
under the accrual basis of accounting.

Net Position of governmental activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these basic financial statements.
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City of Rio Dell, California

Reconciliation of Fund Basis Balance Sheet to Government-wide Statement of Net Position

Governmental Activities
June 30, 2021

ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Current assets:
Cash and investments
Receivables:
Interest
Intergovernmental
Loans/Notes receivable
Other receivable
Due from other funds
Prepaid items
Total current assets
Noncurrent assets:
Capital assets, net
Total noncurrent assets
Total assets
Deferred outflows of resources:
Pension Plan
Total assets and deferred outflows of recources

LIABILITIES AND DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Due to other funds
Compensated absences - current portion
Total current liabilities
Noncurrent liabilities:
Long-term liabilities:
Compensated absences
Total noncurrent liabilities

Total liabilities

Deferred inflows of resources
Unavailable revenue

Total liabities and deferred inflows of resources:

FUND BALANCES/NET POSITION

Fund balances:

Nonspendable

Restricted

Assigned

Unassigned (deficit)
Net position:

Net investment in capital assets

Restricted

Unrestricted

Total fund balances/net position

Total liabilities, deferred inflows and net position

Governmental
Funds Changes Statement of
Balance Sheet Reclassifications in GAAP Net Position
$ 3,260,948 $ - 8 - 3 3,260,948
1,343 - - 1,343
207,421 - - 207,421
807,419 - - 807,419
513,335 - - 513,335
269,037 (269,037) - -
37,240 - - 37,240
5,096,743 (269,037) - 4,827,706
- - 6,671,986 6,671,986
- - 6,671,986 6,671,986
5,096,743 (269,037) 6,671,986 11,499,692
$ 5,096,743 $ (269,037) § 6,671,986 $ 11,499,692
$ 125,179 3 - 8 - 3 125,179
269,037 (269,037) - -
= - 6,554 6,554
394216 (269,037) 6,554 131,733
- - 58,987 58,987
- - 58,987 58,987
394216 (269,037) 65,541 190,720
807,419 - (807,419) -
1,201,635 (269,037) (741,878) 190,720
37,240 (37,240) - -
732,218 (732,218) - -
572,719 (572,719) - -
2,552,931 (2,552,931) - -
- - 6,671,986 6,671,986
- - 732,218 732,218
- 3,895,108 9,660 3,904,768
3,895,108 - 7,413,864 11,308,972
$ 5,096,743 $ (269,037) $ 6,671,986  § 11,499,692

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these basic financial statements.
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City of Rio Dell, California

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

Governmental Funds
For the year ended June 30, 2021

Major Funds
Other
General CDBG Governmental
Fund Special Revenue Funds Totals
REVENUES:
Property taxes $ 148,127  $ - § - 148,127
Sales taxes 809,947 - - 809,947
Cannabis taxes 347,772 - - 347,772
Occupancy taxes 20,597 - - 20,597
Gas tax - - 142,803 142,803
Intergovernmental 474,496 174,531 788,216 1,437,243
Licenses, permits, and franchise fees 185,112 - 70,458 255,570
Interest and use of property 34,922 65,718 1,557 102,197
Miscellaneous 16,249 - - 16,249
Total revenues 2,037,222 240,249 1,003,034 3,280,505
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
General government - 262,915 3,248 17,760 283,923
Public safety - Police 751,480 - 134,056 885,536
Public works 143,191 - 201,504 344,695
Planning and building 37,706 - 90,332 128,038
Recycling 1 - 6,348 6,349
Capital outlay 482,923 - 481,136 964,059
Total expenditures 1,678,216 3,248 931,136 2,612,600
REVENUES OVER (UNDER)
EXPENDITURES 359,006 237,001 71,898 667,905
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers in 10,389 - - 10,389
Transfers out - (4,674) (5,715) (10,389)
Total other financing sources (uses) 10,389 (4,674) (5,715) -
Net change in fund balances 369,395 232,327 66,183 667,905
FUND BALANCES:
Beginning of year 2,224,862 173,669 828,672 3,227,203
End of year $ 2594257 § 40599 $ 894,855 3,895,108

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these basic financial statements.
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City of Rio Dell, California

Reconciliation of Fund Basis Statements to Governiment-wide Statement of Activities

For the year ended June 30, 2021

Compensated Capital
Absences/ Asset Government-
Fund Based Debt (Additions)/ wide
Functions/Programs Totals Service Depreciation Retirements Totals

Governmental activities:

General government $ 283923 § 28,782 § 24205 § - 8 336,910

Public safety - Police 885,536 33,688 - 919,224

Public works 344,695 - 100,464 (175,597) 269,562

Planning and building 128,038 - c o 128,038

Recycling 6,349 - - - 6,349
Capital outlay 964,059 - - (964,059) -
Total governmental activities $ 2612600 § 28782 % 158357 § (1,139,656) § 1,660,083

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these basic financial statements.
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City of Rio Dell, California

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities

For the year ended June 30, 2021

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities are different
because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures while governmental
activities report depreciation expense to allocate those expenditures over the life of the

assets:
Capital asset purchases capitalized $ 1,139,656
Depreciation expense (158,357)

Certain notes receivable are reported in the governmental funds as expenditures and
then offset by a deferred revenue as they are not available to pay current expenditures.
Likewise, when the note is collected it is reflected in revenue. This is the net change
between notes receivable collected and issued.

Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not require the use of
current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in
governmental funds:

Change in compensated absences

Change in Net Position of governmental activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these basic financial statements.
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City of Rio Dell, California

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances -
Budget to Actual - Major Funds

For the year ended June 30, 2021

General Fund

Variance w/Final

Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
REVENUES:
Property taxes 132,110 132,110 148,127  § 16,017
Sales taxes 437,500 437,500 809,947 372,447
Cannabis taxes 110,000 110,000 347,772 237,772
Occupancy taxes 5,000 5,000 20,597 15,597
Intergovernmental 400,000 418,698 474,496 55,798
Licenses, permits, and franchise fees 128,020 128,020 185,112 57,092
Interest and use of property 22,445 22,445 34,922 12,477
Miscellaneous 1,750 1,750 16,249 14,499
Total revenues 1,236,825 1,255,523 2,037,222 781,699
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
General government 249,870 272,262 262,915 9,347
Public safety - Police 816,503 820,040 751,480 68,560
Planning and public works 263,740 269,251 143,191 126,060
Building 52,552 52,552 37,706 14,846
Capital outlay 378,900 1,018,002 482923 535,079
Total expenditures 1,761,565 2,432,107 1,678,216 753,892
REVENUES OVER (UNDER)
EXPENDITURES (524,740) (1,176,584) 359,006 1,535,590

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):

Transfers in 9,075 9,075 10,389 1,314
Transfers out - - - -

Total other financing sources (uses) 9,075 9,075 10,389 1,314

Net change in fund balances (515,665) (1,167,509) 369,395 1,536,904
FUND BALANCES:

Beginning of year 2,224,862 2,224,862 2,224,862 -

End of year $ 1,709,197 $ 1,057,353 $ 2594257 § 1,536,904

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these basic financial statements.
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CDBG Special Revenue Fund

Variance w/Final

Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)

. - -3 .

4,644 4,644 174,531 169,887

- 3,250 65,718 62,468

4,644 7,894 240,249 232,355

- 3,250 3,248 2

- 3,250 3,248 2

4,644 4,644 237,001 232,357
(4,644) (4,644) (4,674) (30)
(4,644) (4,644) (4,674) (30)

- - 232,327 232,327
173,669 173,669 173,669 -

$ 173,669 § 173,669 § 405996 $ 232327
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ENTERPRISE FUNDS

Fund Description
Major Funds:
Sewer Fund Accounts for the operation and maintenance of the City’s
wastewater treatment plant and collection facilities.
Water Fund

Accounts for the operation and maintenance of the City’s water
treatment and distribution system.
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City of Rio Dell, California
Statement of Net Position
Proprietary Funds

June 30, 2021

ASSETS
Current-assets:
Cash and investments
Receivables:
Accounts
Intergovernmental
Interest
Prepaid
Total current assets
Noncurrent assets:
Capital assets, net
Total noncurrent assets
Total Assets

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Interest payable
Deposits payable

Compensated absences - current portion

Due within one year
Total current liabilities
Noncurrent liabilities:
Compensated absences
Due after one year
Total noncurrent liabilities
Total liabilities

Net Position:
Net investment in capital assets
Unrestricted
Total net position

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources and

net position

Sewer Water

Fund Fund Totals
$ 2,306,295 § 2,676,318 $§ 4,982,613
181,021 180,514 361,535
70,533 13,631 84,164
684 1,447 2,131
- 68,000 68,000
2,558,533 2,939,910 5,498,443
12,439,794 9,270,400 21,710,194
12,439,794 9,270,400 21,710,194
$ 14,998,327  $ 12,210,310 § 27,208,637
$ 9,513 $ 16,179 25,692
11,096 11,055 22,151
79,526 - 79,526
54,347 36,726 91,073
2,005 2,004 4,009
183,644 136,000 319,644
340,131 201,964 542,095
16,179 24,081 40,260
5,238,605 1,020,000 6,258,605
5,254,784 1,044,081 6,298,865
5,594,915 1,246,045 6,840,960
7,201,189 8,250,400 15,451,589
2,202,223 2,713,865 4,916,088
9,403,412 10,964,265 20,367,677
$ 14,998,327 § 12,210,310 § 27,208,637

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these basic financial statements.
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City of Rio Dell, California ,
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position
Proprietary Funds

For the year ended June 30, 2021

Sewer Water
Fund Fund Totals
OPERATING REVENUES:
Charges for service 1,300,245 1,091,411 2,391,656
Connection fees 10,335 10,800 21,135
Late fees 30,751 30,893 61,644
Total operating revenues 1,341,331 1,133,104 2,474,435
OPERATING EXPENSES:
Current operations:
General government 229,797 209,391 439,188
Public works 692,095 732,477 1,424,572
Depreciation 573,213 254,860 828,073
Total operating expenses 1,495,105 1,196,728 2,691,833
OPERATING INCOME (153,774) (63,624) (217,398)
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):
Miscellaneous - 450 450
Intergovernmental revenues (expenses) 133,111 171,329 304,440
Bad debt recovery (expense) 969 1,635 2,604
Interest revenue 6,901 9,296 16,197
Interest expense (120,607) - (120,607)
Contributed capital - 222,344 222,344
Total non-operating revenues, net 20,374 405,054 425,428
NET INCOME BEFORE TRANSFERS (133,400) 341,430 208,030
Transfers in - - -
Transfers out - - -
Total transfers - - -
CHANGE IN NET POSITION (133,400) 341,430 208,030
NET POSITION:
Beginning of year 9,536,812 10,622,835 20,159,647
End of year $ 9403412 § 10,964,265 20,367,677

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these basic financial statements.
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City of Rio Dell, California
Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds

For the year ended June 30, 2021

Sewer Water
Fund Fund Totals
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Cash received from customers/users for services provided $ 1,285,361 $ 1,201,062 § 2,486,423
Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services (614,982) (809,564) (1,424,546)
Cash payments to employees for services (336,523) (121,951) (458,474)
Net cash provided by operating activities 333,856 269,547 603,403
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ‘
Receipts from miscellaneous - 450 450
Other non-operating payments 969 172,964 173,933
Net cash used by noncapital financing activities 969 173,414 174,383
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Capital grants received 133,111 222,344 355,455
Acquisition and construction of capital assets (34,395) (22,119) (56,514)
Principal paid on long term debt (179,691) (136,000) (315,691)
Interest paid on long term debt (123,243) - (123,243)
Net cash (used) by capital and related financing activities (204,218) 64,225 (139,993)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Investment income received 10,766 13,302 24,068
Net cash provided by investing activities 10,766 13,302 24,068
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 141,373 520,488 661,861
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS:
Beginning of year 2,164,922 2,155,830 4,320,752
End of year $ 2,306,295 _$ 2,676,318 _$ 4,982,613
Reconciliation of income from operations to net
cash provided by operating activities:
Operating income $ (153,774) $ (63,624) $ (217,398)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income
to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation 573,213 254,860 828,073
(Increase) decrease in current assets:
Accounts receivable (28,848) (33,768) (62,616)
Intergovernmental receivables (27,122) 101,726 74,604
Increase (decrease) in liabilities:
Accounts payable (41,611) (7,715) (49,326)
Accrued liabilities 11,096 11,055 22,151
Deposits payable 1,610 2,128 3,738
Compensated absences (708) 4,885 4,177
Net cash provided by operating activities $ 333856 $ 269,547 $ 603,403

There were no noncash investing, capital, or financing activities affecting recognized assets and liabilities for the

year ended June 30, 2021.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these basic financial statements.
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Fund

FIDUCIARY ACTIVITIES

Description

Custodial Fund

Used to account for assets held for districbution by
the City as an agent for another entity.
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City of Rio Dell, California

Statement of Fiduciary Net Position

Fiduciary Funds
June 30, 2021
Custodial Fund
ASSETS
Cash and investments $ 31,442
Interest receivable 17
Total assets 31,459
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable -
Total Liabilities -
NET POSITION
Restrictd for:
Individuals, organziations, and other governments 31,459
Total net postion $ 31,459

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these basic financial statements.
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City of Rio Dell, California

Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position

Fiduciary Funds
June 30, 2021
Custodial Fund
ADDITIONS
Intergovernmental receivable $ 18,900
Interest earned 118
Donations 70
Total additions 19,088
DEDUCTIONS
Administrative expense -
Total deductions =
Net increae (decreae) in fiduciary net postion 19,088
Net position - beginning 12,371
Net position - ending $ 31.459

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these basic financial statements.

40

_§5-



NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

41

-66-



City of Rio Dell, California
Basic Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2021

Index to Notes to Basic Financial Statements

Page
Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies.................ccoovueiieiieeriiiieieceeeseeeaas 43
Financial Reporting ENtity .......cccoeierrriinnnieeeeeeeceeetee ettt ee e 43
Basls OF Prosenbation. o s usmsisnmisnissnssss i issrimsssmmmmmsndinmmmamer e es simsmssssmes s 44
Measurerietit FOTUS wmesusmmmmammmmsmsssomimmsiss smmsssissis st isissitnmimmmmesmssassnsmmmsmmesssns 46
Basis Of ACCOUINTINE . .....o.eirieieiririeiiinietetrieee sttt ettt s st en st see e see s e e s e e s e sasaeeenensaens 46
Assets, Liabilities, and EQUILY .....cccoovirririniinciiicecice et eees st see s sssesenesseesneas 47
Revenues, Expenditures, and EXPENSes..........ccoccevirirrnnenienieiiieisee st NI +.
Budgetary ACCOUNLINE ....cccueiuiuiriiriiitricetrteee ettt ve s s aese s s sens st eas e e er et esenenens 54
Note 2 — Cash and INVEStMENLS............ccoeuiemiriiniiecec ettt ettt s eaeessasenaes 55
Note 3 — Accounts Receivable ...........cccovuiiiiiiiiiiiciccett ettt 58
Note 4 —Loans Receivable ...ttt 58
Note 5 — Capital ASSetS........ccccociuiiiiieieetece ettt ettt en s 59
Note 6 — Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities...............ccccooevveuiuiieiiieeececeecccceeereeeee, 61
Note 7 — Long-term Liabilities.............cccoceminiiiiiiiiici e 61
Note 8 — Net Position/Fund Balances ............c.ccocooiiiiiiiniiiiiieciiieseceee ettt 64
Note 9 — Interfund Transactions ...........cccooceoierieriiiieiinieeccetecee e et ere s saseseseena 66
Note 10— Risk MADAGCINEIL ... «cooonmssssonssosssons sosmssssnissimiss seisisis 4456545 5osnss smmmemssmmennmssssemssennsssmmentes 67
Note 11 — Joint PoOwWers AGIreements............ccocuviiieriecieiieieieeeteere s sseeseeseessesnesesereeseesesssssesseneans 68
Note 12 — Deferred Compensation Plan............cococooeiiiiiiiiiniiiiiecccsee e 70
Note 13 — Commitments and Contingencies................cccoouiuireioiirereiieeeeeeceereeeeeee e 70
Note 14 — New Accounting Pronouncements..............c.cccoouvueeininreninerereeeeresseseeesesseeeeeessseesseeenans 70
Note 15 — Pandemic Effects..........ccooiiiiiiiiice ettt en e eneanas 72

42

-67-



City of Rio Dell, California
Basic Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2021

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The basic financial statements of the City of Rio Dell (the City) have been prepared in conformity with
U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to governmental agencies. The
Governmental Accounting Standards Boards (GASB) is the accepted standard setting body for
establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The more significant
accounting principles are described below.

Financial Reporting Entity

The City is a general law City incorporated in the State of California on February 26, 1965. The City is
governed by an elected, five-member City Council. The following services are provided by the City to
its citizens: public safety (police); highways and streets; drinking water; wastewater collection,
treatment and disposal; public improvements; parks and recreation; planning and zoning; and general
administrative services.

The City operates as a self-governing local government unit within the State. It has limited authority to
levy taxes and has the authority to determine user fees for the services that it provides. The City’s main
funding sources include sales taxes, other intergovernmental revenue from state and federal sources,
user fees, and federal and state financial assistance.

The financial reporting entity consists of (a) the primary government, the City, (b) organizations for
which the primary government is financially accountable, and (c) other organizations for which the
primary government is not accountable, but for which the nature and significance of their relationship
with the primary government are such that exclusion would cause the reporting entity’s financial
statements to be misleading or incomplete. Financial accountability is defined as the appointment of a
voting majority of the component unit’s board, and either (a) the City has the ability to impose its will
on the organization, or (b) there is a potential for the organization to provide a financial benefit to or
impose a financial burden on the City.

As required by GAAP, these financial statements present the government and its component units,
entities for which the government is considered to be financially accountable. These component units
are reported on a blended basis. Blended component units, although legally separate entities, are, in
substance, part of the government’s operations and so data from these units are combined with data of
the primary government. The financial statements of the individual component units, if applicable as
indicated below, may be obtained by writing to the City of Rio Dell, Finance Department, 675
Wildwood Ave., Rio Dell, CA 95562.

Description of Joint Powers Agreements
The City participates in several joint power agreements (JPAs) as described in Note 11. The financial

activities of the JPAs are not included in the accompanying basic financial statements because JPAs
are administered by governing boards that are separate from and independent of the City.
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City of Rio Dell, California
Basic Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2021

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, continued
Basis of Presentation
Government-Wide Financial Statements

The statement of net position and statement of activities display information about the reporting
government as a whole. They include all funds of the reporting entity except for fiduciary funds. The
statements distinguish between governmental and business-type activities. Governmental activities
generally are financed through taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and other nonexchange revenues.

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for goods,
services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment, 2) operating grants and contributions,
and 3) capital grants and contributions restricted to the operating or capital requirements of a specific
function or segment. All taxes and internally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues
rather than program revenues.

Fund Financial Statements

Fund financial statements of the reporting entity are organized into funds, each of which is considered
to be a separate accounting entity. Each fund is accounted for by providing a separate set of self-
balancing accounts, which constitute its assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues, and
expenditures/expenses. Funds are organized into three major categories: governmental, proprietary,
and fiduciary. An emphasis is placed on major funds within the governmental and proprietary
categories. A fund is considered major if it is the primary operating fund of the City or meets the
following criteria:

a. Total assets, liabilities, revenues, or expenditures/expenses of that individual
governmental fund are at least ten percent of the corresponding total for all funds of that
category or type; and

b. Total assets, liabilities, revenues, or expenditures/expenses of the individual
governmental fund are at least five percent of the corresponding total for all
governmental funds combined.

The City reports the following major funds:

e General Fund
e CDBG Special Revenue Fund
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City of Rio Dell, California
Basic Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2021

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, continued

Basis of Presentation, Continued

Descriptions of these funds are included on the divider page preceding the Governmental Funds
Balance Sheet.

The funds of the financial reporting entity are described below:

Governmental Funds

General Fund

The General Fund is used to account for resources traditionally associated with the City which are not
required legally or by sound financial management to be accounted for in another fund. From this fund
are paid the City’s general operating expenditures, the fixed charges, and the capital costs that are not
paid through other funds.

Special Revenue Funds

The Special Revenue Funds are used to account for specific revenues that are legally or otherwise
restricted to expenditures for particular purposes.

Capital Project Funds

The Capital Projects Funds are used to account for financial resources used for the acquisition or
construction of major capital facilities other than those financed by proprietary funds.

Proprietary Funds

Enterprise Funds

Enterprise Funds are used to account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar
to private business enterprises. Costs are financed or recovered primarily through user charges.

Fiduciary Funds

Custodial Funds

Custodial Funds are clearing type funds for the collection of taxes or deposits held in trust, on behalf of
individuals, private organizations and other governments. The funds are custodial in nature (assets
equal liabilities) and do not involve measurement of results of operations.
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City of Rio Dell, California
Basic Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2021

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, continued

Measurement Focus

Measurement focus is a term used to describe which transactions are recorded within the various
financial statements.

On the government-wide Statement of Net position and the Statement of Activities, governmental and
business-type activities are presented using the economic resources measurement focus. The
accounting objectives of this measurement focus are the determination of net income, financial
position, and cash flows. All assets and liabilities (whether current or noncurrent) associated with their

activities are reported. Fund equity is classified as Net position, which serves as an indicator of
financial position.

In the fund financial statements, the “current financial resources” measurement focus is used for
governmental funds. Only current financial assets and liabilities are generally included on their balance
sheets. Their operating statements present sources and uses of available spendable financial resources

during a given period. These funds use fund balance as their measure of available spendable financial
resources at the end of the period.

The enterprise funds and private purpose trust funds utilize an “economic resources” measurement
focus. The accounting objectives of this measurement focus are the determination of net income,

financial position, and cash flows. Enterprise fund and private purpose trust funds equity is classified as
net position.

Custodial funds are not involved in the measurement of results of operations; therefore, measurement
focus is not applicable to them.

Basis of Accounting

The government-wide, proprietary and fiduciary funds financial statements required by GASB
Statement No. 34 are reported using the "economic resources" measurement focus and the
accrual basis of accounting. Accordingly, all of the City's assets and liabilities, including capital
assets and long-term liabilities, are included in the accompanying Statement of Net Position. The
Statement of Activities presents changes in net position. Under the accrual basis of accounting,
revenues are recognized in the period in which they are earned, while expenses are recognized in
the period in which the liability is incurred.

The governmental fund financial statements are accounted for on a spending or "current
financial resources" measurement focus, and the modified accrual basis of accounting.
Accordingly, only current assets and liabilities (except for long-term advances from the City) are
included in the Balance Sheet. The Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund
Balances presents increases (revenues and other financing sources) and decreases (expenditures
and other financing uses) in net current assets. Under the modified accrual basis of accounting,
revenues are recognized in the accounting period in which they become both measurable and
available to finance expenditures of the current period.
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City of Rio Dell, California
Basic Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2021

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, continued

Basis of Accounting, Continued

Revenues are recorded when received in cash, except that revenues subject to accrual (generally
60 days after fiscal year end) are recognized when due. The primary revenue sources, which
have been treated as susceptible to accrual by the City, are property taxes, sales taxes,
intergovernmental revenues, other taxes and investment earnings. Fines, licenses and permits,
and charges for services are not susceptible to accrual because they are not measurable until
received in cash. Expenditures are recorded in the accounting period in which the related fund
liability is incurred.

Grant revenues are recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements are met.
Under the terms of grant agreements, the City may fund certain programs with a combination of
cost- reimbursement grants, categorical block grants and general revenues. Thus, both restricted
and unrestricted net position may be available to finance program expenditures. The City's

policy is to first apply restricted grant resources to such programs, followed by general revenues
if necessary.

Non-exchange transactions, in which the City gives or receives value without directly receiving
or giving value in exchange, include taxes, grants, entitlements and donations. On the accrual
basis, revenue from taxes is recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied or
assessed. Revenue from grants, entitlements and donations is recognized in the fiscal year in
which all eligibility requirements have been satisfied. :

Assets, Liabilities, and Equity
Cash Deposits and Investments

The City pools cash from all sources and all funds, except certain specific investments within funds
and cash with fiscal agents, so that it can be invested at the maximum yield, consistent with safety and
liquidity, while individual funds can make expenditures at any time.

The City's investment policy and section 53601 of the California Government Code allow the
following investments:

a) Certificates of Deposit;
b) Obligations of the State of California.

The City does not enter into reverse repurchase agreements.
The City's investments are carried at fair value instead of cost, as required by U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles. The City adjusts the carrying value of its investments to reflect their fair value at

each fiscal year end if material, and it includes the effects of these adjustments in income for that fiscal
year.
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City of Rio Dell, California

Basic Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2021

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, continued
Assets, Liabilities, and Equity, Continued

The City places certain funds with the State of California's Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF).
The City is a voluntary participant in LAIF, which is regulated by California Government Code
Section 16429 under the oversight of the Treasurer of the State of California and the Pooled Money
Investment Board. The State Treasurer's office pools these funds with those of other governmental
agencies in the state and invests the cash. The fair value of the City's investment in this pool is reported
in the accompanying financial statements based upon the City's pro-rata share of the fair value
provided by LAIF for the entire LAIF portfolio (in relation to the amortized cost of that portfolio).

The monies held in the pooled investment funds are not subject to categorization by risk category. The
balance available for withdrawal is based on the accounting records maintained by LAIF, which are
recorded on the amortized cost basis. Funds are accessible and transferable to the master account with
twenty-four hours' notice. Included in LAIF's investments are collateralized mortgage obligations,
mortgage backed securities, other asset-backed securities, loans to certain state funds, and floating rate
securities issued by federal agencies, government-sponsored enterprises, and corporations. Financial
statements for LAIF can be obtained from the California State Treasurer's Office: State Treasurer's
Office, 915 Capitol Mall, Suite 110, Sacramento, CA 95814.

Interfund Receivables and Payables

During the course of operations, numerous transactions occur between individual funds that may result
in amounts owed between funds. Those related to goods and services type transactions are classified
as “due to and from other funds.” Long-term interfund loans (noncurrent portion) are reported as
“advances from and to other funds.” Interfund receivables and payables between funds within
governmental activities are eliminated in the Statement of Net position. See Note 9 for details of
interfund transactions, including receivables and payables at year-end.

Receivables

In the government-wide statements, receivables consist of all revenues earned at year-end and not yet
received. Major receivable balances for the governmental activities include property taxes, sales and
use taxes, utility user taxes, intergovernmental subventions, interest earnings, and expense
reimbursements.

In the fund financial statements, material receivables in governmental funds include revenue accruals
such as property tax, sales tax, utility user tax, and intergovernmental subventions since they are
usually both measurable and available. Non-exchange transactions collectible but not available, such
as property tax, are deferred in the fund financial statements in accordance with the modified accrual
basis, but not deferred in the government-wide financial statements in accordance with the accrual
basis.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, continued
Assets, Liabilities, and Equity, Continued

Interest and investment earnings are recorded when earned only if paid within 60 days since they
would be considered both measurable and available. The loans receivable are recorded in the fund
statements, but are deferred to indicate they do not represent current financial resources. The loans are
recognized when advanced in the government-wide statements. The City’s experience is that all
accounts receivable are collectible; therefore an allowance for doubtful accounts is unnecessary.

Iliventory

The City does not record and maintain inventory records of unused materials and supplies for the
various ctl'unds. Inventories are considered immaterial and materials and supplies are currently
expensed.

Prepaid Items

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as
prepaid items in both government-wide and fund financial statements. In the governmental fund
financial statements, prepaid items are offset with a reservation of fund balance for long-term assets to
indicate they do not constitute current resources available for appropriation.

Capital Assets

The City's assets are capitalized at historical cost or estimated historical cost, if actual is unavailable,
except for donated Capital Assets which are recorded at their estimated fair value at the date of
donation. Policy has set the capitalization threshold for reporting at $5,000 for non-infrastructure
capital assets and $25,000 for infrastructure capital assets.

Government-Wide Statements

Public domain (infrastructure) capital assets include roads, bridges, curbs and gutters, streets,
sidewalks, drainage systems, and lighting systems.

The accounting treatment of property, plant and equipment (capital assets) depends on whether the
assets are used in governmental fund operations or proprietary fund operations and whether they are
reported in the government-wide or fund financial statements.

Depreciation of all exhaustible capital assets is recorded as an allocated expense in the Statement of
Activities, with accumulated depreciation reflected in the Statement of Net position. Depreciation is
provided over the assets’ estimated useful lives using the straight-line method of depreciation. No
depreciation is recorded in the year of acquisition or in the year of disposition.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, continued
Assets, Liabilities, and Equity, Continued

The range of estimated useful lives by type of asset is as follows:

Buildings and improvements 5—50 years Landscaping 30 years
Roadway improvements 50 years Signage 25 years
Sidewalks, curbs, and gutters 50 years Leasehold improvements 5 years
Storm drain pipes/structures 50 years Machinery and equipment 3 -5 years
Traffic signal devices 5—40 years Vehicles 3 years

Fund Financial Statements

In the fund financial statements, capital assets used in governmental fund operations are accounted for
as capital outlay expenditures of the governmental fund upon acquisition. Capital assets used in
proprietary fund operations are accounted for the same way as in the government-wide statements.

Deferred outflows/inflows of resources

[n addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of
resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be
recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/ expenditure) until then.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources,
represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized
as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The government has only one type of item, deferred
inflows on the City’s CDBG loans reported in the governmental funds balance sheet.

Compensated Absences
Full time employees accumulate earned vacation, holiday and compensated leave of varying amounts
dependent upon length of service with the City. These amounts are deemed fully vested with the

employee when earned. The City also provides full time employees with sick leave that generally must
be used for sickness and injury-related leave time.

The City does not currently provide post-employment benefits.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, continued
Assets, Liabilities, and Equity, Continued
Unearned Revenues

Unearned revenues in governmental funds arise when potential revenue does not meet both the
“measurable” and “available” criteria for recognition in the current period. Unearned revenues in
enterprise funds and the statement of net position arise when resources are received by the City before

it has legal claim to them, (i.e., when grant monies are received prior to the incurrence of qualifying
expenses).

Equity Classification
Government-Wide Statements
Equity is classified as net position and is displayed in three components:

a. Invested in capital assets, net of related debt — consists of capital assets, including
restricted capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by the outstanding
balances of any bonds, mortgages, notes, or other borrowings that are attributable to the
acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets.

b. Restricted net position — consists of net position with constraints placed on the use by
external groups such as creditors, grantors, contributors, or bylaws or regulations of other
governments or law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

. Unrestricted net position — all other net position that do not meet the definition of
“restricted” or “invested in capital assets, net of related debt.”

Fund Financial Statements

Governmental fund equity is classified as fund balance. Fund balance is classified as nonspendable,
restricted, committed, assigned, or unassigned. Proprietary fund equity is classified the same as in the
government-wide statements. The classifications for governmental funds are defined as follows for the
City:

Nonspendable Fund Balance —

e Assets that will never convert to cash (prepaid items, inventory).

e Assets that will not convert to cash soon enough to affect the current period (long-term notes or
loans receivable).

* Resources that must be maintained intact pursuant to legal or contractual requirements (the
principal of an endowment).
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, continued
Equity Classification, Continued
Fund Financial Statements, continued

Restricted Fund Balance —

* Resources that are subject to externally enforceable legal restrictions imposed by parties
altogether outside the government (creditors, grantors, contributors and other governments).

* Resources that are subject to limitations imposed by law through constitutional provisions or
enabling legislation (Gas Tax).

Committed Fund Balance —

e Self imposed limitations set in place prior to the end of the period (encumbrances, economic
contingencies and uncertainties).

e Limitation at the highest level of decision-making (Council) that requires formal action at the
same level to remove.

e Council resolution is required to be taken to establish, modify or rescind a fund balance
commitment

Assigned Fund Balance —

e Amounts in excess of nonspendable, restricted and committed fund balance in funds other than
the general fund automatically are reported as assigned fund balance.

e Assigned amounts for a specific purpose are as authorized by the City’s Finance Director
through its fund balance policy.

Unassigned Fund Balance —

e Residual net resources

¢ Total fund balance in the general fund in excess of nonspendable, restricted, committed, and
assigned fund balance (surplus).

e Excess of nonspendable, restricted, and committed fund balance over total fund balance
(deficit).
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, continued
Revenues, Expenditures, and Expenses

Property Tax

The County of Humboldt (the County) assesses properties, bills for, collects, and distributes property
taxes for the City per the following schedule:

Secured Unsecured
Valuation dates March 1 March 1
Lien/Levy dates July 1 July 1
Due dates 50% on November 1 July 1
50% on February 1
Delinquent as of December 10, April 10 August 31

The term "unsecured" refers to taxes on personal property other than real estate, land and buildings.
These taxes are secured by liens on the property being taxed. Property tax revenues are recognized by
the City in the fiscal year they are assessed provided they become available as defined above.

Since the passage of California Proposition 13, beginning with fiscal year 1978-79, taxes are based
either on a 1% rate applied to the 1975-76 assessed value of the property, or on 1% of the sales price of
the property on sales transactions and construction which occur after the 1975-76 assessment. Assessed
values on properties (exclusive of increases related to sales transactions and improvements) can rise at
a maximum of 2% per year. The amount collected by the County is distributed in accordance with
State law to the various public agencies. Therefore, the City does not levy a specific tax rate but
receives a share of the property tax revenue based on a State formula. The City's tax rate is $1.00/$100
of assessed value, the maximum allowable under Proposition 13.

During fiscal year 1993-94, the State passed legislation which permanently shifted an additional
amount of property taxes from cities to schools. This amount was partially offset by one-time
payments by the State to cities from the State "Transportation Planning and Development” allocation.
Also during 1993- 94, an alternate method of property tax allocation (the "Teeter Plan") was adopted.

Under this plan, the City receives 100 percent of the secured property tax levied to which it is entitled,
whether or not collected.

Unsecured delinquent taxes are considered fully collectible and no allowance for uncollectible taxes is
provided. Property tax revenues are recognized when they become available. "Available" means due,
or past due, and receivable within the current period and collected or expected to be collected soon

enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities for the current period. This period is 60 days from the
end of the fiscal year.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, continued

Interfund Transfers

Resources are reallocated between funds by reporting them as interfund transfers. For the purposes of
the Statement of Activities, all interfund transfers between individual governmental funds have been
eliminated.

Budgetary Accounting

The City Council establishes budgets for the General Fund and all Special Revenue Funds, except for
certain Special Revenue Funds for which expenditures are controlled by grant funding or by
assessments received. Budgetary control is legally maintained at the fund level for these funds.
Department heads submit budget requests to the City Manager. The City Manager prepares an estimate
of revenues and prepares recommendations for the next year’s budget. The preliminary budget may or
may not be amended by the City Council and is adopted by resolution by the City Council on or before
June 30 in accordance with the municipal code.

The City Council may amend the budget by motion during the fiscal year. Only the Council can
authorize transfers between funds and approve inter-fund loans. The City Manager is authorized to
transfer budgeted amounts within a fund without formal council action or approval. The City Manager
is authorized to increase expenditures in relation to revenues in funds receiving assigned revenues
without approval by the City Council.

Expenditures may not legally exceed appropriations at the fund level, which is the legal level of
control. Supplemental appropriations, which increase appropriations, may be made during the fiscal
year. There were no material supplemental appropriations made for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2021. Budget information is presented for the General and budgeted Special Revenue Funds in the
fund financial statements. The budget information is presented on a basis consistent with generally
accepted accounting principles. Appropriations, except open project appropriations, and unexpended
grant appropriations, lapse at the end of each fiscal year.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the

reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses. Actual results could differ from those
estimates.

Reclassifications

Certain amounts have been reclassified to provide for comparable results on a year to year basis.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, continued
Implementation of New GASB Pronouncements

GASB Statement No. 84

In January 2017, GASB issued Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities. This Statement improves
guidance regarding the identification of fiduciary activities for accounting and financial reporting
purposes and how those activities should be reported. Application of this statement is effective for the
City's fiscal year ending June 30, 2021.

As a result of this Statement, certain funds previously classified as “agency funds” have been
reclassified as custodial funds. The implementation of this statement has resulted in changing the
presentation of the financial statements by including accruals and ending net position to custodial
funds not previously required. Beginning net position has been restated to reflect this change.

Custodial Fund
Net Position, July 1, 2020, as previously reported . $ -
Change in accounting principles 12,371
Net Position, July 1, 2020 as restated $ 12,371

2. CASH AND INVESTMENTS

Pooled Cash and Investments

The City pools cash from all sources and funds, except certain specific investments within funds and
cash with fiscal agents, so that it can be invested at the maximum yield, consistent with safety and
liquidity, while individual funds can make expenditures at any time.

Categorization of Credit Risk of Securities Instruments

The City and its fiscal agents invest in individual investments and in investment pools. Individual
investments are evidenced by specific identifiable pieces of paper called securities instruments, or by
an electronic entry registering the owner in the records of the institution issuing the security, called
the book entry system. Individual investments are generally made by the City's fiscal agents as
required under its debt issues. In order to maximize security, the City employs the Trust Department
of a bank as custodian of all City managed investments, regardless of their form.
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2. CASH AND INVESTMENTS, continued

At June 30, 2021, the City’s pooled cash and investments, classified by maturity, consisted of the
following stated at fair value:

Maturities (in years) Fair
<1 1to3 3t05 Deposits Market Value
Cash equivalents and investments pooled
Pooled cash, at fair value

Cash in bank $ - $ -3 - § 6591,398 § 6,591,398

Petty cash - - - 1,250 1,250
Total pooled items ' - - - 6,592,648 6,592,648

Pooled investments, at fair value '

State of California Local Agency Investment Fund 4,682,355 - - - 4,682,355
Total pooled investments - interest obligations 4,682,355 - - - 4,682,355
Total cash equivalents and investments pooled $ 4682355 § - $ - § 6592648 $ 11,275,003

Amounts reported in:

Governmental activities $ 3,260,948
Business-type activities 7,982,613
Fiduciary activities 31,442
Total $ 11,275,003

Investment Type Fair Value Maturity (Years)
State of California Local Agency Investment Fund $ 4,682,355 -
Total fair value $ 4,682,355

Portfolio weighted average maturity =

Interest rate risk ~Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect
the fair value of an investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment the greater the
sensitivity of its fair value to changes in market interest rates. One of the ways that the City manages
its exposure to interest rate risk is by purchasing a combination of shorter term and longer term
investments and by timing cash flows from maturities so that a portion of the portfolio is maturing or

coming close to maturity evenly over time as necessary to provide the cash flow and liquidity needed
for operations.

Credit risk — Custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that in the event of the failure of a
counterparty, the City will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities
that are in the possession of an outside party. All investments in LAIF and the fiscal agent money

market funds are not evidenced by specific securities and, therefore, are not subject to custodial credit
risk.

Concentration of credit risk — The City’s investment policy does not allow for an investment in any
one issuer that is in excess of five percent of the government’s total investments. The investments
made by the City Treasurer are limited to those allowable under State statutes as incorporated into the
City’s Investment Policy, which is accepted annually by the City Council. There were no
concentrations in any one issuer for the year.
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2. CASH AND INVESTMENTS, continued

The City participates in an investment pool managed by the State of California titled Local Agency
Investment Fund (LAIF) which has invested 3.37% of the pool funds in Structured Notes and Asset-
Backed Securities. LAIF's investments are subject to credit risk with the full faith and credit of the
State of California collateralizing these investments. In addition, these Structured Notes and Asset-
Backed Securities are subject to market risk as to changes in interest rates.

Custodial credit risk — deposits. For deposits, this is the risk that, in the event of a bank failure, the
City’s deposits may not be returned. The City’s Investment Policy addresses custodial credit risk,
which follows the Government Code.

At June 30, 2021, the carrying amount of the City’s deposits was $3,591,397 and the balances in
financial institutions were $4,079,389. Of the balance in financial institutions, $250,000 was covered
by federal depository insurance and $3,829,389 was collateralized as required by State law
(Government Code Section 53630), by the pledging financial institution with assets held in a common
pool for the City and other governmental agencies, but not in the name of the City. As of June 30,
2021, the City’s investments were held by the City’s custodial agent, but not in the City’s name, and
were insured up to specified limits by the Securities Investor Protection Corporation (SIPC) and
supplemental private insurance up to a limit of $150 million.

California Law requires banks and savings and loan associations to pledge government securities with
a market value of 110% of the City's cash on deposit or first trust deed mortgage notes with a value of
150% of the deposit as collateral for these deposits. Under California Law, this collateral is held in the
City's name and places the City ahead of general creditors of the institution.

Custodial credit risk — investments. For investments, this is the risk that, in the event of the failure of
the counterparty, the City will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities
that are in the possession of an outside counterparty. For the investments maintained by the City, no

security was uninsured or unregistered or held by a brokerage firm which is also the counterparty for
the security.

Investment in LAIF

The City is a voluntary participant in California Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF), which is
regulated by California Government Code Section under the oversight of the Local Investment
Advisory Board (Board). The Board consists of five members as designated by state statute and is
chaired by the State Treasurer who is responsible for day to day administration of LAIF. The total
amount invested by all public agencies as of June 30, 2021 was $37,066,592,514 of which the City had
a balance of $4,682,355. LAIF is part of the California Pooled Money Investment Account (PMIA),
which at June 30, 2021 has a portfolio with market valuation of $193,463,491 thousand. Of the total
invested, 97.69% was invested in non-derivative financial products and 2.31% in structured notes and
asset- backed securities. The fair value of the City’s investment in this pool is reported in the
accompanying financial statements at amounts based upon the City’s pro-rata share of the fair value
provided by LAIF for the entire LAIF portfolio (in relation to the amortized cost of that portfolio). The
balance available for withdrawal is based on the accounting records maintained by LAIF, which are
recorded on an amortized cost basis.
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3. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Accounts receivable consisted of the following at June 30, 2021:

Receivables
Governmental Activities
Accounts receivable $ 513,335
Intergovernmental 207,421
Interest 1,343
$ 722,099
Business-type activities
Accounts receivable $ 361,535
Intergovernmental 84,164
Interest 2,131
$ 447,830

These amounts resulted in the following concentrations in receivables:

Other Governments 24.89%
Individuals/Business  74.99%
Financial Institutions 0.11%

Amounts do not indicate a significant concentration (greater than 25%) with any single individual,
business or agency.

4. LOANS AND NOTES RECEIVABLE

The City engages in programs designed to encourage business enterprises, construction or
improvement in low-to-moderate income housing, or other projects. Under these programs,
grants or loans are provided with favorable terms to businesses, homeowners or developers who
agree to spend these funds in accordance with the City's terms.

Loans and notes receivable for the year ended June 30, 2021, consisted of the following:

Beginning Ending
July 1, 2020 Additions Deletions June 30, 2021

Housing Rehabilitation and Affordable Housing Notes $ 981,950 § - $ (174,531) $ 807,419
Total loans receivable $ 981,950 §$ - $(174,531) $ 807,419

Housing Rehabilitation, Business Enterprise and Affordable Housing

The City has provided loans to various homeowners and businesses for rehabilitation. The
maximum loan amount is $100,000, carrying various interest rates and payment dates. Although
these notes are expected to be repaid in frill, their balance has been offset by deferred revenue.
Governmental funds report a deferred inflow of resources in connection with receivables for
revenues that are not considered to be available to liquidate liabilities of the current period.
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5. CAPITAL ASSETS

Governmental capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2021, was as follows:

Balance Balance
6/30/2020 Additions Retirements ~ 6/30/2021
Capital assets (Not Depreciated)
Land $ 627,945 § - b - $ 627945
Construction in progress 1,107,729 790,668 (85,657) 1,812,740
Total capital assets (not depreciated) 1,735,674 790,668 (85,657) 2,440,685
Capital assets (being depreciated)
Buildings and improvements 356,422 - - 356,422
Equipment 584,682 26,611 - 611,293
Vehicles 187,811 171,774 - 359,585
Streets and roads 2,103,640 236,260 - 2,339,900
Infrastructures 2,406,317 - - 2,406,317
Total capital assets (being depreciated) 5,638,872 434,645 - 6,073,517
Less accumulated depreciation:
Buildings and improvements 65,452 11,187 - 76,639
Equipment 516,213 14,480 - 530,693
Vehicles 151,501 33,617 - 185,118
Streets and roads 390,989 50,947 - 441,936
Infrastructure 559,704 48,126 - 607,830
Total accumulated depreciation 1,683,859 158,357 S 1,842,216
Governmental activities capital assets, net $ 5,690,687 $ 6,671,986
Depreciation expense for capital assets was charged to functions as follows:
Governmental-Type Activities
General Government $ 24205
Public Safety 33,688
Planning and public works 100,464
Total Governemental Activities $ 158357
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S. CAPITAL ASSETS, continued
Business-type capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2021, was as follows:

Balance Balance
6/30/2020 Additions  Retirements ~Adjustments  6/30/2021

Capital assets (Not Depreciated)

Land $ 507,859 $ - 3§ - 8 - § 507859
Construction in progress - - - - -
Total capital assets (not depreciated) 507,859 - - - 507,859

Capital assets (being depreciated)

Infrastructure 27,376,243 - - - 27,376,243
Buildings and Improvements 206,508 - - - 206,508
equipment 1,309,396 33,794 - - 1,343,190
Vehicles 145,926 22,718 - - 168,644
Total capital assets (being depreciated) 29,038,073 56,512 - - 29,094,585

Less accurnulated depreciation:
Infrastructure 5,693,342 763,690 - - 6,457,032
Buildings and Improvements 194,612 (2,980) - - 191,632
Equipment 1,075,974 55,255 - - 1,131,229
Vehicles 100,249 12,108 - - 112,357
Total accumulated depreciation 7,064,177 828,073 - - 7,892,250
Net depreciable assets 21,973,896 (771,561) - - 21,202,335
Total net capital assets $22,481,755 $(771,561) § - $ - $21,710,194

Depreciation expense for Business-type capital assets was charged to functions and programs based on
their usage of related assets. The amount allocated to each function on program are as follows:

Business-Type Activities

Sewer $ 573,213
Water 254,860
Total Busines-Type Activities $ 828,073
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6. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities consisted of the following at June 30, 2021:

Governmental ~ Business-type

Activities Activities Total
Accounts payable $ 101,092 § 47,843 § 148,935
Accrued payroll and related liabilities 24,087 - 24,087
Total $ 125179 ¢ 47,843 § 173,022

These amounts resulted in the following concentrations in payables:

Vendors 86%
Employees 14%

Amounts do not indicate a significant concentration (greater than 25%) with any single vendor or
employee.

7. LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

The following is a summary of changes in long-term liabilities for the year ended June 30, 2021:

Original Issue Balance Balance Due Within
Amount July 1, 2020 Additions Retirements  June 30, 2021 One Year
Governmental Activities:
Compensated absences $ -3 36,759 $ 28,782 $ - 8 65,541  § 6,554
Total governmental activities $ - 36,759 $ 28,782 % - 8 65,541 § 6,554
Business-type activities
Safe Drinking Water Loan $ 2,720,000 $ 1,292,000 $ - $ (136,0000 $ 1,156,000 $ 136,000
State of California Water
Resources Control Board 6,980,359 5,601,940 - (179,691) 5,422,249 183,644
Total business-type activity debt 10,236,159 6,893,940 - (315,691) 6,578,249 319,644
Compensated absences - 40,092 4,177 - 44,269 4,009
Total business-type activities $ - $6934032 § 4177 $ (315691) $ 6622518 § 323,653
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7. LONG-TERM LIABILITIES, continued

Governmental Activities

Compensated Absences

The City records employee absences, such as vacation, illness, and holidays, for which it is expected
that employees will be paid as compensated absences. Compensated absences had a balance of $65,541
at June 30, 2021, of that amount $6,554 is expected to be paid within a year. The net changes of the
compensated absences are allocated to the public safety department on the Statement of Activities.

Business-type Activities
Safe Drinking Water State Revolving Fund Loan

In August 2005, the City entered into a loan agreement with the California Department of Health
Services, Drinking Water and Environmental Services Division, for a loan in an amount up to
$2,720,000. The loan was subsequently funded by the Safe Drinking Water State Revolving Fund. The
proceeds from the loan were used to assist in financing construction of a project that will enable the
City to meet safe drinking water standards established under the Health and Safety Code and
California Code of Regulations. The non-interest-bearing loan calls for 50 equal semiannual payments
due in July and January of each year, beginning in July 2009. At June 30, 2021, the balance of the note
was $1,156,000.

State of California Water Resources Control Board

The City has obtained a loan from the California Department of Water Resources to finance an
upgrade of the wastewater treatment plant to comply with State wastewater standards. The debt is
required to be serviced through wastewater system user charges. The maximum loan amount is
$6,980,359. Principal and interest are payable annually on October 31. The rate of interest is 2.20%.
The annual principal and interest payments are $302,933 and continue through the fiscal year 2044.
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T LONG-TERM LIABILITIES, continued

Debt Service

Future debt service for Business-Type Activities at June 30, 2021, is as follows for all debt except
compensated absences and claims liabilities:

Business-type Activities

Year Ending State of California Water
June 30, Safe Drinking Water Loan Resources Control Board Total
Principal : Interest Principal Interest Principal . Interest
2022 $ 136,000 $ - $ 183,644 ) 119,289 $ 319,644 § 119,289
2023 136,000 - 187,684 115,249 323,684 115,249
2024 136,000 - 191,813 111,120 327,813 111,120
2025 136,000 - 196,033 106,900 332,033 106,900
2026 136,000 200,346 102,588 336,346 102,588
2027 -2031 476,000 - 1,069,814 444,853 1,545,814 444,853
2032 - 2036 - - 1,192,787 321,880 1,192,787 321,880
2037 -2041 - - 1,329,895 184,772 1,329,895 184,772
2042 - 2046 - - 870,233 38,568 870,233 38,568
2047 - 2051 - - - - - -
Total ) 1,156,000 $ - 3 5,422,249 $  1,545219 $ 6,578,249 $ 1545219
Due within one year $ 136,000 $ - $ 183,644 § 119,289 $ 319,644 3 119,289
Due after one year 1,020,000 - 5,238,605 1,425,930 6,258,605 1,425,930
Total 3 1,156,000 $ - 3 5,422,249 $ 1,545,219 § 6,578,249 $ 1,545,219
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8. NET POSITION/ FUND BALANCES

Net position

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
Net investment in capital assets $ 6,671,986 $ 15,451,589 $ 22,123,575
Restricted 732,218 - 732,218
Unrestricted 3,904,768 4,916,088 8,820,856
Total $ 11,308,972  $§ 20,367,677 $ 31,676,649

* Restricted balances are for the same purposes as fund balance restrictions because external
restriction requirements are the same. See descriptions of the restrictions below.

Fund Balance

Nonspendable and Restricted fund balance consisted of the following at June 30, 2021:

Nonspendable:
Prepaid items $ 37,240
Total Nonspendable $ 37,240
Restricted:
Governmental Funds:
CDBG $ 405,996
Gas Tax 301,478
RSTP 24,744
Total Restricted $ 732,218

The following describe the purpose of each nonspendable, restricted, and committed category used by
the City:

Nonspendable
e Prepaid Items — represents nonspendable amounts classified as prepaid items.

Restricted

e CDBG- represents amounts restricted for the City’s CDBG housing activities as these
programs are supported by specific grants requiring the restriction.

® Gas Tax — represents amounts restricted for street maintenance purposes as defined in
Sections 2105, 2106, 2107 and 2107.5 of the Streets and Highway Code.

e ISTEA - represents amounts restricted in accordance with the Intermodal Surface
Transportation Efficiency Act.
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8. NET POSITION/ FUND BALANCES, continued

Fund Balance Deficits

Deficit fund balances consisted of the following:

As of
June 30, 2021

Nonmajor Spcial Revaue Funds:

STIP $ 4,086
Total Nonmajor Funds 4,086
Total Fund Balance Deficits $ 4,086

The above deficit fund balances have occurred due to the spending of funds prior to the receipt of
revenues (cost reimbursements). The Fund balances will be restored in the near future as revenues are
received.

Excess of Expenditures and Transfers over Appropriations:

Expenditures and transfers exceeded appropriations for the year ended June 30, 2021, for the following
funds: '

Final Expenditures and
Fund Appropriations Transfers Excess
Major Funds
Special Revenue Funds
CDBG $ 7,894 $ 7,922 $ (28)
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9. INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS

Due to and from balances result from the time lag between the dates that (1) interfund goods and
services are provided or reimbursable expenditures occur, (2) transactions are recorded in the

accounting system, and (3) payments between funds are made.

Due to and due from other funds consisted of the following as of June 30, 2021:

Due from Due to
Other Funds Other Funds
Governmental Funds
Major Funds:
General Fund $ 268,737 -
Total Major Funds 268,737 -
Nonmajor Funds:
RSTP - 2,758
Measure Z - 12,562
STIP - 253,417
Total Nonmajor Funds - 268,737
Total Governmental Funds 268,737 268,737
Total $ 268,737 268,737

Transfers are used to (1) move revenues from the fund that statute or budget requires to collect them to
the fund that statute or budget requires to expend them, and (2) use unrestricted revenues collected in
the general fund to finance various programs accounted for in other funds in accordance with

budgetary authorizations.
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9. INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS, CONTINUED

Transfers consisted of the following at June 30, 2021:

Transfers In Transfers Out
Governmental Funds
Major Funds:
General Fund $ 10,389 $ -
CDBG Special Revenue - 4,674
Total Major Funds 10,389 4,674
Nonmajor Funds:
Special Revenue Funds
Solid Waste - 2,450
Building - 3,265
Total Nonmajor Funds - 5,715
Total Governmental Funds 10,389 10,389
Total $ 10,389 $ 10,389

10. RISK MANAGEMENT

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of
assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The City is a member of the
Small Cities Organized Risk Effort Joint Powers Authority (SCORE). SCORE provides insurance
coverage for general liability, property, and workers' compensation claims under the terms of a joint-
powers agreement with the City and several other governmental municipalities.

SCORE is insured up to $500,000 per general liability and $1,000,000 per property claim and has
purchased excess of loss insurance policies providing coverage above the self-insurance limit to a
maximum of $25,000,000. The City has a $2,500 - $50,000 deductible per claim for general liability,
property and workers' compensation cases. When the deductible is met, SCORE becomes responsible
for payment of the excess claim.

Payments for insurance claims are recorded as expenditures in the funds in which the liabilities were
incurred. In accordance with GASB Statement No. 10, if the third party administrator, SCORE, does
not insure the loss occurrence then the City shall accrue a loss, if probable and reasonably estimable.
As of June 30, 2021, the City has no uninsured occurrences. The City has not used an actuary in
determining the liability reserve if needed. Because the actual claim liabilities depend on such complex
factors as inflation and changes in legal doctrines and damage awards, the process used in computing
claim liabilities does not necessarily result in an exact amount. Claims are evaluated periodically to
take into account recently settled claims, the frequency of claims and other economic and social
factors.
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11. JOINT POWERS AGREEMENTS

The City is a member of various joint powers authorities, which provide goods or services to the City
and other authority members. Under the criteria established by GASB Statement No. 14, the City does
not have sufficient authority, influence or accountability over these entities to incorporate them in this
annual report. Additionally, the City has determined that it has no ongoing financial interest in or
responsibility for any of these organizations as defined by GASB Statement No. 14. The names and
general functions of these joint powers are as follows:

Humboldt Transit Authority

Humboldt Transit Authority (HTA) was created as a separate legal entity by a joint powers agreement
between Humboldt County and the Cities of Fortuna, Eureka, Arcata, Trinidad, and Rio Dell. The
governing board consists of a city council member and an alternate member appointed from each
participating city, as well as two board members and up to two alternate members appointed by the
Humboldt County Board of Supervisors. HTA is responsible for adopting its own budget and has the
power to incur debts, liabilities, or other obligations. On commencement of operations of HTA, the
County contributed 50 percent of the initial equity, and the participating cities jointly contributed 50
percent based upon population data. The participants do not have an ongoing equity interest in HTA..

However, the participants do share operating costs of HTA, and the current share of the City of Rio
Dell is 2.8 percent. During the year ended June 30, 2021, the City paid HTA $40,646. At termination
of the agreement, all surplus monies will be returned to the participants in proportion to the amounts
received and property shall be divided in a manner agreed upon by the parties. Complete financial
statements for Humboldt Transit Authority may be obtained at the offices of the Authority at 133 V
Street, Eureka, California 95501.

Hazardous Materials Response Authority

Hazardous Materials Response Authority (HMRA) was created as a separate legal entity by a joint
powers agreement between the County of Humboldt, the County of Del Norte, and Cities of Eureka,
Crescent City, Arcata, Blue Lake, Fortuna, Trinidad, and Rio Dell. (The City of Ferndale withdrew
from the agreement during 1994-1995). The purpose of this joint venture is to pool resources of the
participants to provide a united, coordinated, orderly, positive, and more effective means of aiding and
assisting in the formulation, administration, implementation and maintenance of an area-wide
hazardous materials response team.

HMRA is governed by a board of directors comprised of one member and an alternate appointed by
each participant. It adopts its own budget and has the powers to incur debts, liabilities, or obligations.
The City of Eureka is responsible for directing the operations of Hazardous Materials Response Teams
and for the accounting of HMRA, and in return HMRA reimburses the City of Eureka for the costs of
operation and accounting services.
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11. JOINT POWERS AGREEMENTS, CONTINUED

Upon commencement of HMRA, the participants agreed to contribute a proportionate share of the cost
of operations based on population. The participants do not have an ongoing equity interest in HMRA.
However, the participants do share the operating costs of HMRA, and the current share of the City of
Rio Dell is 1.9 percent, based on population. During the year ended June 30, 2021, the City paid
HMRA $717. At termination of the agreement, all surplus monies will be returned to the participants in
proportion of the amounts received by HMRA; property shall be divided in a manner agreed upon by
the participants. Complete financial statements of HMRA are on file at the offices of the City of
Eureka at 531 K Street, Eureka, California 95501.

Redwood Region Economic Development Commission

Redwood Region Economic Development Commission (RREDC) was established on November 1,
1977, under a Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement among the nineteen public agencies within
Humboldt County, including the City of Rio Dell. RREDC is a separate public entity created to aid,
assist, and coordinate the formulation, administration, and implementation of the Economic
Development Action Plan and Strategy for Humboldt County, and to assist in the implementation of
economic development projects and programs to improve the quality of life in the area. RREDC is
governed by one member and an alternate appointed by each participant. Complete financial
statements for RREDC are on file at the offices of RREDC at 520 E Street, Eureka, California 95001.

Humboldt Waste Management Authority (HWMA)

A JPA formed to administer solid waste, recycling and other material diversion programs and services.
Formed in 1999 and comprised of the County of Humboldt, Arcata, Blue Lake, Eureka, Ferndale and
Rio Dell.

Humboldt County Association of Governments (HCAOG)

A local JPA formed for regional transportation planning, responsible for programming State highway,
local street and road improvements and public transportation resources. All seven cities and the County
are participants. '

Redwood Coast Energy Authority (RCEA):

A JPA formed to develop and implement regional measures that reduce energy demand, increase
energy efficiency and advance the use of clean efficient renewable resources. Members include the
County of Humboldt; the Cities of Arcata, Blue Lake, Eureka, Ferndale. Fortuna, Rio Dell, and
Trinidad; and the Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District.
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12. DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN

The City offers its employees deferred compensation plans created in accordance with Internal
Revenue Code Section 457. The plans, available to all City employees, permit employees to defer a
portion of their salary until future years. Participation in the plans is optional. The deferred
compensation is not available to employees until termination, retirement, death, or unforeseeable
emergency. As explained previously, the City has adopted the provisions of GASB Statement No. 32
and, therefore, assets and liabilities of these plans have been excluded from the accompanying
financial statements. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021, the City made contributions totaling
$137,439 to the plan.

13. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Litigation

The City is involved in litigation incurred in the normal course of conducting City business. Although
the outcome of these lawsuits is not presently determinable, in the opinion of the City’s counsel, the
resolution of these matters will not have a material adverse effect on the financial condition of the City.

Grants and Allocations

Amounts received or receivable from grant agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by grantor
agencies, principally the federal and state government. Any disallowed claims, including amounts
already collected, may constitute a liability of the applicable funds. The amount, if any, of
expenditures that may be disallowed by the grantor cannot be determined at this time, although the
City expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial.

Commitments

The City had no significant unexpended contractual commitments as of June 30, 2021.

14. NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

The GASB has issued Statement No. 87, "Leases.” The requirements of this Statément are effective
for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2021. The objective of this Statement is to better
meet the information needs of financial statement users by improving accounting and financial
reporting for leases by governments. This Statement increases the usefulness of governments’ financial
statements by requiring recognition of certain lease assets and liabilities for leases that previously were
classified as operating leases and recognized as inflows of resources or outflows of resources based on
the payment provisions of the contract. It establishes a single model for lease accounting based on the
foundational principle that leases are financings of the right to use an underlying asset. Under this
Statement, a lessee is required to recognize a lease liability and an intangible right-to-use lease asset,
and a lessor is required to recognize a lease receivable and a deferred inflow of resources, thereby
enhancing the relevance and consistency of information about governments’ leasing activities. The

City will implement this statement, as applicable, to its financial statements for the year ending June
30, 2021.
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14. NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS, CONTINUED

The GASB has issued Statement No. 87, "Leases." The requirements of this Statement are effective
for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2020. The objective of this Statement is to better
meet the information needs of financial statement users by improving accounting and financial
reporting for leases by governments. This Statement increases the usefulness of governments’ financial
statements by requiring recognition of certain lease assets and liabilities for leases that previously were
classified as operating leases and recognized as inflows of resources or outflows of resources based on
the payment provisions of the contract. It establishes a single model for lease accounting based on the
foundational principle that leases are financings of the right to use an underlying asset. Under this
Statement, a lessee is required to recognize a lease liability and an intangible right-to-use lease asset,
and a lessor is required to recognize a lease receivable and a deferred inflow of resources, thereby
enhancing the relevance and consistency of information about governments’ leasing activities. The

City will implement this statement, as applicable, to its financial statements for the year ending June
30, 2022.

The GASB has issued Statement No. 89, "Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred before the End of a
Construction Period." The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning
after December 15, 2020. Earlier application is encouraged. The objectives of this Statement are (1) to
enhance the relevance and comparability of information about capital assets and the cost of borrowing
for a reporting period and (2) to simplify accounting for interest cost incurred before the end of a
construction period. The City will implement this statement, as applicable, to its financial statements
for the year ending June 30, 2022.

The GASB has issued Statement No. 91, "Conduit Debt Obligations." The requirements of this
Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2020. Earlier application is
encouraged. The primary objectives of this Statement are to provide a single method of reporting
conduit debt obligations by issuers and eliminate diversity in practice associated with (1) commitments
extended by issuers, (2) arrangements associated with conduit debt obligations, and (3) related note
disclosures. This Statement achieves those objectives by clarifying the existing definition of a conduit
debt obligation; establishing that a conduit debt obligation is not a liability of the issuer; establishing
standards for accounting and financial reporting of additional commitments and voluntary
commitments extended by issuers and arrangements associated with conduit debt obligations; and
improving required note disclosures. The City will implement this statement, as applicable, to its
financial statements for the year ending June 30, 2023.

The GASB has issued statement No. 92, “Omnibus 2020”. The objectives of this Statement are to
enhance comparability in accounting and financial reporting and to improve the consistency of
authoritative literature by addressing practice issues that have been identified during implementation
and application of certain GASB Statements. The City will implement this statement, as applicable, to
its financial statements for the year ending June 30, 2022.

The GASB has issued statement No. 93, “Replacement of Interbank Offered Rates”. The objective of
this Statement is to address the accounting and financial reporting effects that result from the
replacement of IBORs with other reference rates in order to preserve the reliability, relevance,
consistency, and comparability of reported information. The City will implement this statement, as
applicable, to its financial statements for the year ending June 30, 2022.
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City of Rio Dell, California
Basic Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2021

14.  NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS, CONTINUED

The GASB has issued statement No. 94, “Public-Private and Public-Public Partnerships and
Availability Payment Arrangements”. The objective of this Statement is to better meet the information
needs of financial statement users by improving the comparability of financial statements among
governments that enter into PPPs and APAs and by enhancing the understandability, reliability,
relevance, and consistency of information about PPPs and APAs. The City will implement this
statement, as applicable, to its financial statements for the year ending June 30, 2023.

The GASB has issued statement No. 96, “Subscription-Based Information T echnology
Arrangements”. The objective of this Statement is to better meet the information needs of financial
statement users by (a) establishing uniform accounting and financial reporting requirements for
SBITAs; (b) improving the comparability of financial statements among governments that have
entered into SBITAs; and (c) enhancing the understandability, reliability, relevance, and consistency of
information about SBITAs. The City will implement this statement, as applicable, to its financial
statements for the year ending June 30, 2023.

The GASB has issued statement No. 97, “Certain Component Unit Criteria, and Accounting and
Financial Reporting for Internal Revenue Code Section 457 Deferred Compensation Plans”. The
primary objectives of this Statement are to (a) increase consistency and comparability related to the
reporting of fiduciary component units in circumstances in which a potential component unit does not
have a governing board and the primary government performs the duties that a governing board
typically would perform; (b) mitigate costs associated with the reporting of certain defined
contribution pension plans, defined contribution other postemployment benefit (OPEB) plans, and
employee benefit plans other than pension plans or OPEB plans (other employee benefit plans) as
fiduciary component units in fiduciary fund financial statements; and (c) enhance the relevance,
consistency, and comparability of the accounting and financial reporting for Internal Revenue Code
(IRC) Section 457 deferred compensation plans (Section 457 plans) that meet the definition of a
pension plan and for benefits provided through those plans.

15. PANDEMIC EFFECTS

The COVID-19 pandemic, whose effects first became known in January 2021, is having a broad and
negative impact on commerce and financial markets around the world. The United States and global
markets experienced significant declines in value resulting from uncertainty caused by the pandemic.
The City is closely monitoring its investment portfolio and its liquidity and is actively working to
minimize the impact of these declines. The extent of the impact of COVID-19 on the City’s
operational and financial performance will depend on certain developments, including the duration and
spread of the outbreak and its impacts on the City’s employees, and vendors, all of which at present,
cannot be determined. Accordingly, the extent to which COVID-19 may impact the City’s financial
position and changes in net position, fund balance and cash flows is uncertain, and the accompanying
financial statements include no adjustments relating to the effects of this pandemic.
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NON-MAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

Fund Description

Gas Tax Accounts for funds received and expended for street maintenance
purposes as defined in Sections 2103, 2105, 2106, 2107, 2107.5
and 2032 (SB1) of the Streets and Highway Code.

TDA Accounts for funds received and expended for transit, street,
pedestrian and bike purposes in Accordance with the
Transportation Development Act.

RSTP Accounts for funds received and expended in accordance with the
Regional Surface Transportation Act.

Solid Waste Accounts for the City's portion of the Humboldt Waste
Management Authority's tipping fees.

SLESF Accounts for funds received to be used for public safety purposes.
Measure Z Accounts for funds received and expended for Measure Z.
STIP Accounts for funds received and expended in accordance with the

State Transportation Improvement Program, a multi-year capital
improvement program of transportation projects on and off the
State Highway System.

Building Accounts for funds received and expended for building
maintenance inspection and permitting purposes.

Recycling ' Accounts for funds received and expended for recycling purposes.

Economic Development Accounts for funds received or designated by the City Council
and expended for economic development purposes.
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City of Rio Dell, California
Combining Balance Sheet
Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds
June 30, 2021

ASSETS

Cash and investments
Receivables:
Interest
Intergovernmental
Other receivable

Total assets

LIABILITIES
AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Due to other funds
Total liabilities:

Fund Balances:
Restricted

Assigned
Unassigned (deficit)

Total fund balances

Total liabilities deferred inflows and fund balances

Gas

Tax TDA RSTP Solid Waste

$ 295,530 62,339 - 3 36,047
94 - - 21

11,378 - 28,135 1,109

$ 307,002 62,339 28,135  $ 37,177
$ 5,524 4,676 333 § -
- - 3,058 -
5,524 4,676 3,391 -
301,478 - 24,744 -

- 57,663 - 37,177

301,478 57,663 24,744 37,177
$ 307,002 62,339 28,135  § 37,177
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Economic

SLESF Measure Z STIP Building Recycling Development Totals

128,976 - 43,197 $ 25,560 $ 30,039 § 300,000 $ 921,688

- - - 16 16 - 147

- - 207,421 - - - 207,421

- 12,562 - - - - 53,184

128,976 12,562 250,618 _$ 25576 _$ 30055 _$ 300,000 _$§ 1,182.440

3,746 - 1,287 § 2982 § - 3 - $ 18,548

- 12,562 253,417 - - - 269,037

3,746 12,562 254,704 2,982 - - 287,585

- - - - - - 326,222

125,230 - - 22,594 30,055 300,000 572,719
- - (4,086) - - - (4,086)

125,230 - (4,086) 22,594 30,055 300,000 894,855

128,976 12,562 250618 _$ 25576 _9$ 30,055 _§ 300,000 _$§ 1,182440
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City of Rio Dell, California

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds
For the year ended June 30, 2021

REVENUES:

Gas tax

Intergovernmental

Licenses, permits, and franchise taxes
Interest and use of property
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES:

Current:
General government
Public safety - Police
Public works
Planning and building
Recycling

Capital outlay

Total expenditures

REVENUES OVER (UNDER)
EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):

Transfers in
Transfers out

Total other financing
sources and uses

REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES OVER (UNDER)
EXPENDITURES AND OTHER
FINANCING (USES)

FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS):
Beginning of year

End of year

Gas Tax TDA RSTP Solid Waste
142,803 $ - 3 - $ -
- 118,068 28,135 -
2,250 - - 4,346
902 - - 139
145,955 118,068 28,135 4,485
10,066 7,694 - -
64,679 107,769 29,056 -
- - = 1,348
6,967 3,245 % -
81,712 118,708 29,056 1,348
64,243 (640) (921) 3,137
- - - (2,450)
- - - (2,450)
64,243 (640) (921) 687
237,235 58,303 25,665 36,490
301,478 $ 57,663 $ 24744 $ 37,177
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Economic

SLESF Measure Z STIP Building Recycling  Development Totals
$ - 3 - 3 - S - $ - $ - § 142,803
155,222 12,562 469,229 - 5,000 - 788,216
- - - 63,862 - - 70,458
305 - - 116 95 - 1,557
155,527 12,562 469,229 63,978 5,095 - 1,003,034
- - - - - - 17,760
121,494 12,562 - - - - 134,056
- - = - - - 201,504
- - - 90,332 - - 90,332
- - - - 5,000 - 6,348
- - 470,924 - - - 481,136
121,494 12,562 470,924 90,332 5,000 - 931,136
34,033 - (1,695) (26,354) 95 - 71,898
- . - (3,265) - - (5,715)
- - - (3,265) - - (5,715)
34,033 - (1,695) (29,619) 95 - 66,183
91,197 - (2,391) 52,213 29,960 300,000 828,672
$ 125230 % - $ (408) $ 22594 $ 30,055 $ 300,000 $ 894,855
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City of Rio Dell, California

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget to Actual

Gas Tax Special Revenue Fund
For the year ended June 30, 2021

REVENUES:
Gas Tax
Licenses, permits, and franchise taxes
Use of money and property
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Current:
General government
Public works
Capital outlay

Total expenditures

REVENUES OVER (UNDER)
EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):

Transfers in
Transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balances

FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT):
Beginning of year

End of year

Variance w/Final

Budgeted Amounts Positive

Original Final Actual (Negative)
138,920 § 138,920 142,803 § 3,883
1,500 1,500 2,250 750
- - 902 902
140,420 140,420 145,955 5,535
13,685 13,685 10,066 3,619
110,131 120,833 64,679 56,154
7,600 11,323 6,967 4,356
131,416 145,841 81,712 64,129
9,004 (5,421) 64,243 69,664
9,004 (5,421) 64,243 69,664
237,235 237,235 237,235 -
246,239 $ 231,814 301,478  § 69,664
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City of Rio Dell, California

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget to Actual

TDA Special Revenue Fund
For the year ended June 30, 2021

REVENUES:
Intergovernmental
Interest and use of property
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Current:
General government
Public works
Capital outlay

Total expenditures

REVENUES OVER (UNDER)
EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):

Transfers in
Transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balances

FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT):
Beginning of year

End of year

Variance w/Final

Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
$ 111,219 $ 115,539 $ 118,068 § 2,529
111,219 115,539 118,068 2,529
10,488 10,488 7,694 2,794
114,199 126,429 107,769 18,660
7,600 7,600 3,245 4,355
132,287 144,517 118,708 25,809
(21,068) (28,978) (640) 28,338
(21,068) (28,978) (640) 28,338
58,303 58,303 58,303 -
$ 37,235  § 29,325 § 57,663 § 28,338
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City of Rio Dell, California

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget to Actual

RSTP Special Revenue Fund
For the year ended June 30, 2021

Variance w/Final

Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
REVENUES:
Intergovernmental $ 24,500 S 24,500 28,135 § 3,635
Miscellaneous - - - -
Total revenues 24,500 24,500 28,135 - 3,635
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Public works 20,418 28,793 29,056 (263)
Total expenditures 20,418 28,793 29,056 (263)
REVENUES OVER (UNDER)
EXPENDITURES 4,082 (4,293) (921) 3,372
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers in - - = =
Transfers out - = = -
Total other financing sources (uses) - - - -
Net change in fund balances 4,082 (4,293) (921) 3,372
FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT):
Beginning of year 25,665 25,665 25,665 -
End of year $ 29,747 $ 21,372 24,744  §$ 3,372
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City of Rio Dell, California

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget to Actual
Solid Waste Special Revenue Fund

For the year ended June 30,2021

Variance w/Final

Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
REVENUES:
Licenses, permits, and franchise taxes $ 4,000 § 4,000 § 4346  § 346
Use of money and property - - 139 139
Miscellaneous - - - -
Total revenues 4,000 4,000 4,485 485
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Recycling 23,785 32,785 1,348 31,437
Total expenditures 23,785 32,785 1,348 31,437
REVENUES OVER (UNDER)
EXPENDITURES (19,785) (28,785) 3,137 31,922
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers in - = - -
Transfers out (2,450) (2,450) (2,450) -
Total other financing sources (uses) (2,450) (2,450) (2,450) -
Net change in fund balances (22,235) (31,235) 687 31,922
FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT):
Beginning of year 36,490 36,490 36,490 -
End of year $ 14,255  $ 5255 § 37,177  $ 31,922
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City of Rio Dell, California

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget to Actual

SLESF Special Revenue Fund
For the year ended June 30, 2021

REVENUES:
Intergovernmental
Use of money and property
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Public safety - Police

Total expenditures

REVENUES OVER (UNDER)
EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers in
Transfers out

* Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balances

FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT):
Beginning of year

End of year

Variance w/Final

Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)

$ 100,000 $ 100,000 § 1552222 § 55,222
- - 305 305
100,000 100,000 155,527 55,527
130,941 130,941 121,494 9,447
130,941 130,941 121,494 9,447
(30,941) (30,941) 34,033 64,974
(30,941) (30,941) 34,033 64,974
91,197 91,197 91,197 -
$ 60,256 $ 60,256 § 125,230  § 64,974
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City of Rio Dell, California

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget to Actual

Measure Z Special Revenue Fund
For the year ended June 30,2021

REVENUES:
Intergovernmental
Use of money and property

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Public safety - Police

Total expenditures

REVENUES OVER (UNDER)
EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):

Transfers in
Transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balances

FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT):
Beginning of year

End of year

Variance w/Final

Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
- $ 12,563 § 12,562 § 18]
- 12,563 12,562 (1)
- 12,563 12,562 1
- 12,563 12,562 1
- $ - $ - 8 -
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City of Rio Dell, California

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget to Actual

STIP Special Revenue Fund
For the year ended June 30, 2021

REVENUES:
Intergovernmental

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Public works
Capital outlay

Total expenditures

REVENUES OVER (UNDER)
EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):

Transfers in
Transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balances

FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT):
Beginning of year

End of year

Variance w/Final

Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)

$ - § 503,039 $ 469,229 § (33,810)
- 503,039 469,229 (33,810)

- 23,712 - 23,712

- 479,327 470,924 8,403

- 503,039 470,924 32,115
- - (1,695) (1,695)
- - (1,695) (1,695)

(2,391) (2,391) (2,391) -
$ (2,391) $ (2,391) $ (4,086) § (1,695)
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City of Rio Dell, California

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget to Actual
Building Special Revenue Fund Budget

For the year ended June 30, 2021

Variance w/Final

Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
REVENUES:
Licenses, permits, and franchise taxes $ 44900 § 44900 §$ 63,862 § 18,962
Interest and use of property - - 116 116
Miscellaneous - - 0 -
Total revenues 44,900 44,900 63,978 19,078
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Planning and building 90,484 90,484 90,332 152
Total expenditures 90,484 90,484 90,332 152
REVENUES OVER (UNDER)
EXPENDITURES (45,584) (45,584) (26,354) 19,230
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers in - - - -
Transfers out (1,981) (1,981) (3,265) (1,284)
Total other financing sources (uses) (1,9811) (1,981) (3,265) (1,284)
Net change in fund balances (47,565) (47,565) (29,619) 17,946
FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT):
Beginning of year 52,213 52,213 52,213 -
End of year $ 4,648 § 4,648 $ 22,594 § 17,946
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City of Rio Dell, California

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget to Actual

Recycling Special Revenue Fund
For the year ended June 30, 2021

REVENUES:
Intergovernmental
Interest and use of property

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Recycling

Total expenditures

REVENUES OVER (UNDER)
EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):

Transfers in
Transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balances

FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT):
Beginning of year

End of year

Variance w/Final

Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
$ - $ 5000 $ 5,000 $ -
- - 95 95
- 5,000 5,095 95
- 5,000 5,000 -
- 5,000 5,000 -
- - 95 95
- - 95 95
29,960 29,960 29,960 -
$ 29,960 $ 29,960 § 30,055 § 95
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City of Rio Dell, California

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget to Actual
Economic Development Special Revenue Fund

For the year ended June 30, 2021

REVENUES:
Intergovernmental
Interest and use of property

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Current:
General government

Total expenditures

REVENUES OVER (UNDER)
EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers in
Transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balances

FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT):
Beginning of year

End of year

Variance w/Final

Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)

$ - 3 - $ -
52,000 52,000 52,000
52,000 52,000 52,000
"~ (52,000) (52,000) 52,000
(52,000) (52,000) 52,000
$ (52,000) $ (52,000) $ $ 52,000

89

-114-



This page intentionally left blank.

90 -1 1~



JJACPA, Inc.

A Protessional Accounting Scrvices Corp.

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING
STANDARDS

Independent Auditor’s Report

The Honorable City Council
City of Rio Dell
Rio Dell, California

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental
activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, the aggregate remaining fund information, and
the budgetary comparison information of the City of Rio Dell, California (City), as of and for the year
ended June 30, 2021, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the
City’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated March 16, 2022.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City’s internal
control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control. Accordingly,
we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a
material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies,
in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention
by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify
any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

7080 Donlon Way, Suite 204, Dublin, CA 94568 e phone (925) 556-6200 o fax: (707) 232-6226
1102 South Main Street, #1, Fort Bragg, CA 95437 e phone (707) 964-6325
WWW._jjacpa.com
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City’s financial statements are free from
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express
such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that
are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

FIFHCP Y Se.

March 16, 2022 JJACPA, Inc.
Dublin, CA
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Y OF

Rio Dell City Hall
675 Wildwood Avenue
Rio Dell, CA 95562

(707) 764-3532 Cachenen
cityofriodell.ca.gov

April 19,2022

TO:

Rio Dell City Council

FROM: Kyle Knopp, City Manager

SUBJECT:  Public Hearing and Presentation on Proposed Water and Wastewater Rate Study

and Proposed Rates Through Fiscal Year 2026-2027 Pursuant to Proposition 218
with Possible Continuance of the Protest Ballot Tabulation to May 3, 2022.

IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT THE CITY COUNCIL:

1.

Advise attendees to submit any remaining protest ballots to the City Clerk prior to the
close of the public hearing.

Receive a presentation from the Water and Wastewater rate consultants.

Open the Proposition 218 public hearing, heart and consider all public comments
received on the proposed water and wastewater rate adjustments having been noticed

more than 45 days ago and sent to all property owners and residential occupants in the
City of Rio Dell, and

Close the public hearing and commence tabulation of all protest ballots. Should the City
Clerk report that an accurate tabulation cannot be obtained within thirty minutes, it is
recommended that the Council move to Recommendation No. 5.

It is recommended that the Council continue the meeting to May 3™, 2022 for final
protest ballot tabulation and possible action on or withdrawal of a proposed authorizing
rate Resolution.

BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION

This item concludes a required 45 day public noticing process associated with the proposed
adjustment in water and wastewater rates.

Wastewater system rate schedules were last adjusted on February 3" 2015 via Resolution No.
1253-2015 and a Proposition 218 hearing was last conducted on April 15, 2014. Water system
rate schedules were last adjusted on December 1, 2015 and a Proposition 218 hearing was last
conducted on the same date.
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On February 15, 2022 the City Council received a presentation on the Water and Sewer Rate
Study and received public comment. The Council set a date of April 19, 2022 to consider rate
adjustments and directed staff to mail notices in accordance to California Constitution,
Proposition 218.

On April 21, 2021 the City Council of the City of Rio Dell approved the issuance of a Request
for Proposal for a professional water and sewer rate study. This RFP was developed by an Ad
Hoc Committee composed of Councilmember’s Wilson and Johnson in conjunction with staff.
On July 6, 2021 the City Council approved the firm Lechowicz and Tseng to conduct a Water
and Wastewater Rate Study on behalf of the City. On January 4, 2022 the City Council received
a presentation and update on the draft water and wastewater rate study.

The primary objective of the study is to develop a five-year rate schedule for water and
wastewater services that equitably distributes costs to customers and adequately funds
operations, debt service, reserves and capital projects.

Water and Wastewater customers in the City of Rio Dell enjoy the benefit of prior major capital
improvements to the central processing plants associated with the systems, including a new main
water plant and intake, new wastewater plant and new backup well system with filtration.
Additionally, some improvements have been made over the past twenty years to the main
distribution system and water storage. While much of the cost of these projects was funded
through State grants, the city does have some debt (its only debt) related to the main water and
wastewater processing facilities.

Significant unresolved infrastructure issues in both systems currently relate to the distribution
and collection systems, which have both received significant state funds to study these
deficiencies and prepare the City to acquire additional grants to resolve these problems.
Additionally water storage, water seismic resiliency, strict wastewater environmental
requirements and qualified employee recruitment and retention remain as important issues.

City of Rio Dell utility rates are based entirely on the City’s cost of operating and maintaining its
water and wastewater facilities and services. Each utility is operated as an independent enterprise
and all expenses and revenues for each service are accounted for in separate funds that are
audited annually. State law requires that all fees collected by each utility be used within that
utility and are not allowed to be used for unrelated purposes.

Representatives from Lechowicz and Tseng will present the attached powerpoint. As of the date
of agenda publication, the City has received two protest ballots and both have been verified as
meeting the Proposition 218 requirements. Staff anticipates a significant number of protest
ballots be received just prior to the opening of the public hearing. Should this occur, it is
recommended that the meeting be continued to May 3™, 2022 in order for a thorough verification
and tabulation of the protest ballots take place. It is recommended that this continuance take
place even if it is clear that the total number of protest ballots submitted does not meet the 50%
+1 threshold even if all ballots submitted are found to be valid. This will ensure that the Council
has an accurate protest ballot count at the time of a proposed vote for an authorizing Resolution.

I
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Attachments:

Consultant Powerpoint

Water and Sewer Rate Study Final Report
Proposition 218 Notice

I
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